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BROOME COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY

March 18, 2020 e 12:00 p.m. e The Agency Conference Room

FIVE South College Drive, Suite 201, 2nd Floor
Binghamton, New York 13905

AGENDA

Oath of Office

Call to Order

Approve Minutes - February 19, 2020 Board Meeting
Public Comment

Executive Director’s Report
e  Updates
® Internal Financial Report — February 29, 2020

Loan Activity Reports as of February 29, 2020

Resolution Approving the 2019 Audit of the Broome County
Industrial Development Agency, Conducted by Insero & Co. CPA’s,
LLP

Resolution Accepting an Application from 159 Washington Holding,
LLC for a Sale/Leaseback or a Lease/Leaseback Transaction to
Facilitate the Renovation of 159 Washington Street, City of
Binghamton, Broome County, New York, Including a Payment in
Lieu of Tax Exemption in an Amount not to Exceed $50,000.00

Resolution Approving an Increase in the Sales and Use Tax
Exemption for 1435-1439 Marchuska, LLC (408 Commerce Road) in
the Amount of $35,920.00, Resulting From an Increase in Spending,
from $800,000.00 to $1,249,000.00, Through and Including August
21, 2020

Resolution Approving a Revision to The Agency’s Uniform Tax
Exemption Policy, as Set Forth in Exhibit “A,” Attached Hereto

Resolution to Accept an Amendment to the Regulatory Agreement
for Century Sunrise

Resolution Approving the Readoption of the Code of Ethics Policy,
the Defense and Indemnification Policy, the Whistle-Blower
Protection Policy, the Compensation, Reimbursement and
Attendance Policy and the Travel Policy with No Changes

FIVE SOUTH COLLEGE DRIVE | SUITE 201 | BINGHAMTON, NY 13905 | 607.584.9000 | THEAGENCY-NY.COM

J. Bernardo
J. Bernardo
J. Bernardo
J. Bernardo

S. Duncan

T. Gray

S. Duncan

S. Duncan

S. Duncan

S. Duncan

S. Duncan

T. Gray



13. Resolution Approving the 2019 Mission and Measurement Report T. Gray

Old Business
14. Adjournment J. Bernardo
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BROOME COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY
BOARD MEETING
FIVE South College Drive; Suite 201, 2nd Floor
Binghamton, New York 13905
Wednesday, February 19, 2020, 12:00 pm

SYNOPSIS OF MEETING
PRESENT: J. Bernardo, J. Stevens, D. Crocker, J. Peduto, C. Sacco, J. Mirabito and B. Rose
ABSENT: W. Howard, R. Bucci
GUESTS: Jeff Platsky, Press & Sun Bulletin

Joseph Moady, Town of Union

Brian Haynes, Great Eastern Hemp

Mayor Greg Deemie, Village of Johnson City
Aaron Martin, Broome County Legislature
Kyle Davis, Chamber of Commerce

STAFF: S. Duncan, T. Gray, N. Abbadessa, C. Hornbeck, B. O’Bryan, T. Ryan and A. Williamson
COUNSEL: J. Meagher

PRESIDING: J. Bernardo

The meeting was called to order at 12:01 p.m.

ITEM #1. APPROVE MINUTES FOR THE JANUARY 15, 2020 BOARD MEETING: Chairman Bernardo
requested a motion to approve the minutes of January 15, 2020.

MOTION: Mr. Stevens motioned to approve, seconded by Mr. Crocker, the MOTION CARRIED
UNANIMOUSLY.

ITEM #2. PUBLIC COMMENT:

Chairman Bernardo stated anybody wishing to speak on any matter concerning the IDA, please state your

name and address for the record.

Mayor Greg Deemie, 243 Main Street, Johnson City, addressed the board, regarding the recent Public

Hearing for Great Eastern Hemp, LLC.
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Chairman Bernardo asked if anyone else would like to comment; hearing none, closed the comment

period.

ITEM #3. EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S REPORT:

Ms. Duncan provided updates on the following:

WALESON DEVELOPMENT — 191 FRONT STREET

Ms. Duncan referred the Board to a conceptual site plan from Waleson Development (Waleson), included
in their folders. On February 18", Ms. Duncan participated with Mayor David to announce a proposed
project at 191 Front Street in the City of Binghamton. Waleson purchased the two buildings formerly
known as Botnick’s Chevrolet, in partnership with NYS Housing and Community Renewal (HCR), utilizing
HCR’s housing tax credit program. The 115-unit housing development will consist of two four-story
buildings, enabling Waleson to provide rents at 60-90% of area median income; loosely qualified as
market-rate. Mayor David, who desired more market-rate housing, had multiple conversations with the
developer and Mr. Lenny Skrill at HCR. The mayor verbally voiced consideration and support for a
deviated PILOT on this project, which will ultimately come before this Board. In addition, the developer
is looking to finance all or some of this project through bonds issued through the IDA (as opposed to the
LDC). The bonds would be tax-exempt funds; but as a for-profit, bonds can be issued through the IDA.
New York State provides a bond cap, just under the $6.8 million; since it is an approximately $20 million
project, additional financing will be required. The Agency believes it can be a great gateway project for
that location in the City of Binghamton. The Agency is working with bond counsel, Harris Beach, as well

as the City on the PILOT process.

CHAMBER OF COMMERCE ECONOMIC FORECAST BREAKFAST

M & T Bank hosted the Chamber’s Economic Forecast Breakfast on February 11, featuring Regional
Economist Gary Keefe who gave a presentation on the global and local economy. Ms. Duncan advised the
data for the greater Binghamton economy was incredibly positive on many fronts, including wage and job
growth: the manufacturing sector out-performed the national average and Broome County is
experiencing non-manufacturing employment and wages rise. Two of four projects were honored locally,
including The ANSCO Lofts project, recognized for being a restorative project and the 50 Front Street

project, recognized as a transformational project.
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CLOSINGS

A closing for Spark Broome (former Sear’s property) is scheduled for Monday, February 24™, The Agency
anticipates closing the Sam A. Lupo & Sons expansion project, as well as the L3 project in the Town of

Kirkwood before March 1,

ITEM #4. LOAN ACTIVITY REPORTS AS OF JANUARY 31, 2020: The Internal Financial Reports for January
were presented to the Board. The balances available to lend are $674,443.33 (STEED), $369,561.50 (BDF)
and $111,416.91 (BR + E). Chairman Bernardo asked if there were questions relative to the internal
financial reports. Chairman Bernardo then asked if there were questions relative to The Agency’s loan
activity. Mr. Stevens commented on the financial impact of the Industrial Park on this report, requesting
an update. Ms. Duncan responded that based on the Board’s decision last month, The Agency has a signed
agreement as of February 19", Mr. Stevens asked if there is movement on the property, itself; Ms. Duncan
replied The Agency is not aware of any significant activity at this point. Hearing no further comments,
Chairman Bernardo moved on to New Business.

MOTION: No motion necessary.

ITEM #5. RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING A SALE/LEASEBACK OR A LEASE/LEASEBACK TRANSACTION TO
FACILITATE THE FINANCING OF THE ACQUISITION, RENOVATION AND EQUIPPING OF 60 LESTER
AVENUE, TOWN OF UNION, BROOME COUNTY, NY AND APPOINTING GREAT EASTERN HEMP, LLC (THE
“COMPANY”) AS AGENT OF THE AGENCY FOR THE PURPOSE OF FINANCING THE ACQUISITION,
RENOVATION AND EQUIPING OF THE PROJECT AND AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTIN AND DELIVERY OF
CERTAIN DOCUMENTS WITH RESPECT THERETO, INCLUDING A PYAMENT IN LIEU OF TAX AGREEMENT
AND A SALES TAX EXEMPTION IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $80,000.00: Ms. Duncan stated two
years ago, former Executive Director, Mr. Kevin Mclaughlin and Ms. Duncan met with the principals of
Great Eastern Hemp, LLC (Great Eastern Hemp), including Mr. Brian Haynes, here today, regarding their
interest in opening a hemp processing facility in Broome County. At the time, Great Eastern Hemp was
still evaluating facilities throughout the community. The Agency advised of our process and requested
they come back to The Agency, when ready to move forward. Mr. Haynes, met with staff, who
recommended meeting with the town assessor and village officials to apprise them of the project. Initially,

Great Eastern Hemp expressed interest in a 21-year PILOT; the town recommended they consider a 15-
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year PILOT. The Agency’s calculation, based on the assessment for a standard 15-year PILOT, provides for

a five-year freeze based on the tax amount at the time of purchase. Taxes at the time of purchase for this
property were zero. The Agency has a PILOT with Carrier Services Group (CSG) in the Town of Hillcrest,
which was a 10-year PILOT; similarly, CSG had a three-year freeze. That project was a transfer from a
municipally-owned entity, not a non-profit, but again, zero taxes at the time of purchase, affording them
the three-year tax freeze. The Great Eastern Hemp project includes the acquisition, renovation and
equipping of the facility to process locally-grown hemp, as well as manufacture products derived from
CBD oils. Great Eastern Hemp anticipates investing $11 million into the facility, mostly through the
purchase and set-up of machinery and equipment and projects 40 net new jobs over three years. Staff
recommends the Board approve the PILOT, as it is in compliance with The Agency’s policy as it stands
today. Chairman Bernardo commended Great Eastern Hemp for their $11 million investment into the
community, with the anticipated creation of 40 or more employees; however suggested the Board and
staff examine The Agency’s PILOT process further regarding property assessments for future applicants.
A lengthy discussion followed.

MOTION: To Authorize a Sale/Leaseback or a Lease/Leaseback Transaction to Facilitate the Financing of
the Acquisition, Renovation and Equipping of 60 Lester Avenue, Town of Union, Broome County, NY and
Appointing Great Eastern Hemp, LLC, and Authorizing the Execution and Delivery of Certain Documents
with Respect Thereto, Including a Payment In Lieu of Tax Agreement and Sales Tax Exemption. Mr.
Stevens made a MOTION to accept the application, as submitted; seconded by Mr. Rose, the MOTION
CARRIED (6 to 1 — Ms. Sacco abstained).

ITEM #6. RESOLUTION APPROVING THE RECOMMENDATION FOR A CREATIVE ECONOMY STUDY: Ms.
Duncan stated additional language should be added to this resolution, as discussed in the preceding
Governance meeting, for an amount up to $75,000.00. Ms. Duncan, Mr. Stevens and Chairman Bernardo
had a discussion last year about earnings on The Agency’s investments, requesting the Board set aside
funds to do studies germane to economic development in Broome County. As a result, $125,000.00 was
set aside from an investment account for such purposes. The proposal under consideration from Cultural
Planning Group, is a comprehensive economic analysis of the creative sector: what does it look like; what
is the job/wage/employment potential in this sector? The study would support and determine what this
sector looks like by the numbers. This study would be incredibly beneficial to non-profits, especially arts
organizations, when seeking funding applications. Studies strengthen applications. On a high-level, this
type of study would help attract art, leisure and recreation populations to the area. This study would
provide data analysis, as accomplished with The Agency’s housing and workforce studies. Ms. Duncan

conducted preliminary discussions with local foundations/funding organizations, as potential partners.
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Ms. Duncan is seeking authorization to potentially spend up to $75,000.00 for such a study. Mr. Stevens
and Chairman Bernardo confirmed the discussion of this subject; Chairman Bernardo then requested a
motion.

MOTION: To Approve a recommendation for a creative economy study. On a MOTION by Ms. Sacco,
seconded by Mr. Stevens, the MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY.

ITEM #7. RESOLUTION APPROVING SUMMARY RESULTS OF CONFIDENTIAL EVALUATION OF BOARD
PERFORMANCE: Ms. Duncan stated the Board is required by the ABO to submit a confidential evaluation,
which is included in your packet. After Board approval, these will be posted to The Agency’s website.
Chairman Bernardo brought the necessity that members be knowledgeable about the ABO’s programs,
financial statements, reporting requirements and other transactions to the Board’s attention. Chairman
Bernardo suggested members and staff set aside time to make sure all Board members are comfortable
with The Agency’s policies and procedures. Ms. Duncan confirmed the staff would advance opportunities
for that in the future. Mr. Stevens pointed out that policy relative to financial information requires
quarterly reporting to the Board and that The Agency reports monthly. The Agency’s information is
provided more frequently than is required by policy and Board members need to pay close attention to
the financial information before the meeting. Chairman Bernardo asked for a motion.

MOTION: To Approve Summary Results of Confidential Evaluation of Board Performance. On a MOTION
by Mr. Mirabito; seconded by Mr. Peduto, the MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY.

ITEM #8: RESOLUTION APPROVING THE READOPTION OF THE AGENCY BYLAWS AND POLICIES AND
PROCEDURES: INVESTMENT AND DEPOSIT POLICY, THE PURCHASING POLICY, PROPERTY ACQUISITION
GUIDELINES, PROPERTY DISPOSITION GUIDELINES AND INTERNAL CONTROLS AND FINANCIAL
ACCOUNTABILITY POLICY WITH NO CHANGES: Mr. Gray stated an annual requirement of the ABO is that
the organization review its Bylaws and Policies and Procedures. The staff has done that and are requesting
the Board readopt those documents in their current form. Chairman Bernardo asked if there were any
objections; hearing none, requested a motion.

MOTION: To Approve the Readoption of The Agency Bylaws and Policies and Procedures, with No
Changes. On a MOTION by Mr. Stevens, seconded by Mr. Rose, the MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY.

ITEM #9: EXECUTIVE SESSION: DISCUSSION OF REAL PROPERTY
MOTION: To Convene to Executive Session at 12:35 p.m. Ona MOTION by Mr. Crocker, seconded by Mr.
Mirabito, the MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY.
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ITEM #10: RECONVENE FROM EXECUTIVE SESSION.
MOTION: To Reconvene back to Public Session at 1:32 p.m. On a MOTION by Mr. Stevens, seconded by
Mr. Mirabito, the MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY.

ITEM #11: ADJOURNMENT: Chairman Bernardo requested a motion to adjourn.
MOTION: On a MOTION by Mr. Stevens, seconded by Mr. Peduto, the MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY,

and the meeting was adjourned at 1:35 p.m.

The next meeting of The Agency Board of Directors is scheduled for Wednesday, March 18, 2020 at 12:00
p-m. at FIVE South College Drive, Suite 201, Binghamton, NY 13905.



Broome County IDA
Internal Financial Status Reports

February 29, 2020



INCOME:

A) Land/Building Income:

265 Industrial Park Drive

ADEC Mortgage

Airport Corporate Loan Hangar Lease

FIVE South College Drive Tenant Leases

Miscellaneous Income
Solar City

Save Around Parkway, LLC
Subtotal

B) BCIDA Fees:
IRB/Sale Leasback Fees
Loan Fund Administration
Subtotal

C) Other Income:
Bank Interest

TOTAL INCOME

EXPENSES:

A) Administration:

Salaries

Benefits

Professional Service Contracts
Payroll Administration
Investment Management
Subtotal

B) Office Expense:

Postage

Telephone/Internet Service

Equipment & Service/Repair Contracts
Supplies

Travel/Transportation

Meetings

Training/Professional Development
Membership/Dues/Subscriptions
Audit

Legal

Insurance (Agency, Director & Officers)
Contingency

Subtotal

C) Business Development:
Advertising

Printing & Publishing

Public Relations Contract
Subtotal

Broome County IDA
Financial Statements vs. Budget
Month Ended 2/29/20

Month # -> 2
2020 Actual Budgeted
Approved YTD thru YTD thru
Budget 2/29/20 2/20/20 Variance
$ 181,667 $ - $ 30,278 $ (30,278)
58,838 9,806 9,806 -
50,000 8,663 8,333 330
87,600 18,800 14,600 4,200
10,000 8,512 1,667 6,845
5,000 - 833 (833)
21,587 - 3,598 (3,598)
414,691 | 45,782 | 69,115 | (23,334)]
615,000 259,300 102,500 156,800
35,000 1,214 5,833 (4,619)
I 650,000 | 260,514 | 108,333 | 152,181 |
| 90,000 | 18,061 | 15,000 | 3,061 |
[$ 1,154,691 | § 324,356 | § 192,449 | § 131,908 |
$ 410,000 $ 80,917 $ 80,769 § (148)
189,000 35,246 36,346 1,100
50,000 12,600 8,333 (4,267)
2,000 476 231 (246)
18,000 4,311 3,000 (1,311)
| 669,000 | 133,550 | 128,679 | (4,870)|
2,000 597 333 (263)
2,000 1,355 333 (1,022)
15,000 2,721 2,500 (221)
7,000 1,415 1,167 (249)
16,000 3,813 2,667 (1,147)
17,000 2,960 2,833 (126)
7,000 775 1,167 392
7,000 3,056 1,167 (1,890)
15,000 5,500 2,500 (3,000)
70,000 12,875 11,667 (1,208)
15,000 13,665 2,500 (11,165)
5,000 1,303 833 (470)
178,000 | 50,035 | 29,667 | (20,369)]
40,000 9,165 6,667 (2,498)
15,000 6,345 2,500 (3,845)
40,000 3,750 6,667 2,917
95,000 | 19,260 | 15,833 | (3,427)]




Broome County IDA
Financial Statements vs. Budget
Month Ended 2/29/20

D) FIVE South College Drive Expenses | 87,600 | 13,403 | 14,600 | 1,197 |

E) Building/Property Maintenance:
Broome Corporate Park

Maintenance - Mowing/Snowplowing 5,000 - 833 833
Deposit Community Center

Maintenance - Mowing/Snowplowing/Utilities 12,000 - 2,000 2,000
600 Main Street

Maintenance - Mowing/Snowplowing 14,000 1,575 2,333 758
Subtotal | 31,000 | 1,575 | 5,167 | 3,592 |
TOTAL EXPENSES |'s 1,060,600 | $ 217,823 [ § 193,946 [ $ (23,877)]
OPERATING INCOME [$ 94,001 [ $ 106,533 | § (1,498)| $ 155,785 |




Cash & Bank Deposits

Petty Cash

Broome County IDA

Summary of Bank Deposits and Investments

Account

NBT BCIDA Checking
NBT BCIDA Money Market
Total Cash & Bank Deposits

Portfolio Investment Accounts

Loan Funds

STEED

BDF

Cash & Equivalents

NBT Transition Account
CDs & Time Deposits

US Treasury Bonds & Notes
Total Portfolio Value

Month End
Balance

100.00
233,113.18
626,820.86

860,034.04

10,875.77

7,271,492.78

7,282,368.55

Total Cash, Bank Deposit Accounts &

Investments

Petty Cash

NBT STEED Checking
NBT STEED Money Market

Total STEED

NBT BDF Checking
NBT BDF Money Market

Total BDF

Total Loan Funds

Total Combined Funds

8,142,402.59

100.00
60,121.26
455,159.76

515,381.02

567.96
375,190.37

375,758.33

10

891,139.35

9,033,541.94

Statement
Date

2/29/2020
2/29/2020
2/29/2020

2/29/2020
2/29/2020
2/29/2020
2/29/2020

212912020
2/20/2020
2/29/2020

2/29/2020
2/29/2020

Rate

0.00%
0.55%

0.44%

2.15%

0.00%
0.50%

0.00%
0.50%
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BORROWER

17 Kentucky Ave., LLC

20 Delaware Ave, LLC

AMT, Inc. #2

Better Offer Properties, LLC
Concept Systems

F.A. Guernsey, Co., Inc.

Fuiler Holding Company, LLC
Matco Group (formerly VMR Corp)
Mountain Fresh Dairy

MS Machining

Prepared Power

Roberts Stone

Sirgany Eyecare

SpecOp Tactical Center
T-Squared Custom Millwork, Inc.
Triple Cities Metal Finishing

TOTAL

Steed Loan Status

Opening Balance
1/1/2020

206,040.89
107,895.88
10,610.96
37,130.08
60,703.61
118,273.72
7,449.73
92,416.06
16,555.60
57,596.35
51,313.86
84,660.96
70,453.61
29,510.52
3,099.25

953,711.08

Current Balance
2/29/2020

203,891.73
104,571.18
8,860.86
35,775.05
57,285.24
118,273.72
162,500.00
5,332.39
92,416.06
15,519.42
57,244.32
48,303.21
78,792.03
70,453.61
28,439.27

1,087,658.09

12

Maturity Date

17172033
1/1/2025
12/1/2020
3/112024
10/1/2022
6/1/2024
2/1/2035
7/1/2020
12/1/2021
7/1/2022
10/1/2033
7/1/2022
4/1/2022
5/1/2024
4/1/2024
1/1/2020

Status
2/29/2020

Current
Current
Current
Current
Current
Bankruptcy
Current
Current
Litigation
Current
Current
60 Days
Current
Litigation
Current
Current



Business Development Fund Status

BORROWER Opening Balance Current Balance Maturity Date Status
1/1/2020 2/29/2020 2/29/2020
17 Kentucky Ave., LLC 93,730.64 92,817.00 10/1/2033 Current
20 Delaware Ave., LLC 105,198.85 101,957.28 1/1/2025 Current
265 Main St, LLC 143,551.40 142,668.56 9/1/2033 Current
ADEC Solutions USA, Inc. 119,423.93 116,147.32 9/1/2025 Current
Matco Group (formerly VMR Corp) 2,483.08 1,777.29 7/1/2020 Current
Mechanical Specialties Co. 13,244.56 12,415.62 7/1/2022 Current
Roberts Stone 33,519.79 31,653.17 7/1/2022 60 Days
SpecOp Tactical Center 74,856.90 74,856.90 5/1/2024 Litigation
250 Main Street, LLC 49,589.67 49,313.83 10/1/2029 Current
Total 635,598.82 623,506.97
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BORROWER

265 Main St, LLC
Grow Hemp, LLC
Prepared Power

250 Main Street, LLC

Total

BR+E Loan Status

Opening Balance
1/1/2020

47,850.52
43,145.93
47,996.97
49,589.67

188,583.09

14

Current Balance
2/29/2020

47,556.24
42,064.89
47,703.61
49,313.83

186,638.57

Maturity Date

9/1/2033
11/1/2025
10/1/2033
10/1/2029

Status
2/29/2020

Current
Current
Current
Current



F. A. Guernsey
Mountain Fresh Dairy
Roberts Stone
SpecOp Tactical

Roberts Stone
SpecOp Tactical

Loan Delinquency Status

STEED
Bankruptey
Litigation
60 Days
Litigation

BDF
60 Days
Litigation
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BROOME COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY
LOAN FUNDS ACTIVITY AS OF

February 29, 2020

STEED ACCOUNT BALANCE: $ 515,281.02

Amount held at ARC in Washington, DC $ 177,719.60

LOAN COMMITMENTS Commitment Date Expiration Date

Total STEED Loans Commitments $ -

Available to Lend $ 693,000.62

BDF ACCOUNT BALANCE: $ 375,758.33

LOAN COMMITMENTS Commitment Date Expiration Date
$ -

Total BDF Loan Commitments $ -

Available to L.end $ 375,758.33

BR+E $ 111,416.91

LOAN COMMITMENTS Commitment Date Expiration Date

Total BRE Loan Commitments $ -

Available to Lend $ 111,416.91
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BROOME COUNTY
INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY
AND LOCAL DEVELOPMENT

CORPORATIO
[ York'y,
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BROOME COUNTY
INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY
AND LOCAL DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY OF 2019 AUDIT REPORT AND FINDINGS

Basic Financial Statements
Independent Auditors' Report on Basic
Financial Statements

Independent Auditors' Report on
Internal  Control Over Financial
Reporting and on Compliance and
Other Matters Based on an Audit of
Financial Statements Performed in
Accordance with Government
Auditing Standards

Description of Report and Findings

Unmeodified opinion on the Broome County Industrial
Development Agency's (the Agency) basic financial
statements for the year ended December 31, 2019.

Unmodified opinion on the Broome County Local
Development Corporation's (the Corporation) basic
financial statements for the year ended December 31 , 2019,

Report on the Ag a'af\ compliance with laws and
regulations that mayhaV@a direct and material effect on the
basic ﬁnancia and on the Agency's internal
control strugfiire, | mt

¥ the Corporation's compliance with laws and
#ul@iOns that may have a direct and material effect on the

“Wbasic financial statements, and on the Corporation's internal
Jontrol structure, policies, and procedures based on the
auditors' understanding of the internal control structure and

assessment of control risk obtained as part of the audit of
the basic financial statements. This report identified no
instances of noncompliance and no material internal
control weaknesses at the financial statement level.
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BROOME COUNTY
INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY
AND LOCAL DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY OF 2019 AUDIT REPORT AND FINDINGS

Communication with Those Charged A letter that specifically addresses certain required

with Governance at the Conclusion of communications to the Boards of the Agency and the

the Audit Corporation in accordance with professional standards,
There were no comments of concern to be reported
regarding the following:

® Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices

® Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit
® Corrected and Unco;;ﬁed Misstatements

® Disagreements with Management

® Management resem’tatlons

B

Manage;?&x ultatings with Other
Independeént A{pcountants',

Other Ku\di.\t Fistdihgs or Issues

® Other Matters.

_ ~‘/
Management Comment Letter The Ag Legéf of comments dated |
2020 coptmunicates no significant deficiencies or
s matenal weaknesses have been reported.

The ‘éorporatlon Letter of comments dated
S » 2020 that communicates no significant
f A )deﬁc1en01es or matenal weaknesses have been reported.
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BROOME COUNTY
INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY
AND LOCAL DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION

5 YEAR FINANCIAL STATEMENT ANALYSIS

December 31, December 31, December 31, December3l, December 31,
2019 2018 2017 2016, restated 2015, restated

INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY
ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents - Unrestricted $ 671,806 $ 821,729 $ 2513915 $ 1,596,799 § 6,037,720
Cash and Cash Equivalents - Restricted 1,005,843 621,416 596,154 1,062,227 683,370
Investments 6,897,363 7,053,674 4,474,448 4,455,830
Accounts Receivable 52,500 174,225 335,000 51,507
Pass Through Receivable 12,464 79,938 323,530
Due from County 285,700 322,542 327,542 339,612 893,088
Due from Binghamton Local Development Corp. 385,000
Notes Receivable 1,530,422 578,577 45,619,391 762,336 1,947,476
Loans Receivable 1,777,902 2,078,542 & 1,965,642 1,569,057
Mortgage Receivable 3,222,492 3,324,296
Property Held Under PILOT Agreements \ 6,087,377 6,087,377
Property Held for Resale 2,097,017 5,664,117 4,365,018
Capital Assets, Net 7,915,531 6,363,334 6.340,672
Total Assets 25,854.040 28235689 26,729.758
LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable, Accrued Expenses, and Other $ 7735 5 3 44641 § 6,157.841 $ 6.152495
Total Liabilities 44.641 6.157,841 6,152,495
NET POSITION
Net Investment in Capital Assets 2, 10,175,046 6,363,334 6,340,672
Restricted for Loans 2,845,902 2,561,815 2,624,511 2,624,511
Unrestricted 5,806,651 15,176,690 13,090,001 11,512,080
Total Net Position 28,624,986 27,913,551 22,077,846 20,577,263
Total Liabilities and Net Position $ 28.683.621 b 27.958.192 $ 28235687 _$ 26,729,758
LOCAL DEVELOPMENT CORPO# 4
ASSETS e
Cash and Cash Equivalents - Unrestricted, 114,269 $ 143,862 $ 177434 3 167,673  § 232,675
Accounts Receivable 75,000
Total Assets 5§ 189.269 5  148.862 $ 177434 & 167.673 % 232,675
LIABILITIES
Unearned Revenue and Accounts Payable $ 3,700 $ 9394 % 53450 § $
Total Liabilities 3,700 9,394 53,450 - -
NET POSITION
Unrestricted 185,569 139468 123,984 167,673 232,675
Total Net Position 185,569 139,468 123,984 167.673 232,675
Total Liabilities and Net Position $ _ 189.269 $ 148862 _§ 177434 § 167673 & 232,675

Note: Abstracted from Audited Financials - See Audit Reports for Complete Information
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BROOME COUNTY

INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY
AND LOCAL DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION

5 YEAR FINANCIAL STATEMENT ANALYSIS

December 31, December 31, December 31, December31, December 31,
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015

INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY
REVENUES
Fee Income $ 1,128,390 $ 848,571 $ 939807 $ 646,564 $ 868,855
Rental Income 98,612 90,598 883,724 2,765,877 1,190,061
Other Income 64,195 88,954 32,892 5,530 49,539
State Grant 484,194 3,865,806
State Aid 2,000 718,839 293,908 332,390
Grant Income 300,000
Investment Income 267,874 89,314 33,210 53,651 37,743
Loan Interest Earned 61,272 163,138 92,285 71,972 65,527
Gain (Loss) on Sale of Assets (3,082,597) 1,908 1,923 402
Total Revenues (1,462,254) 489 965 3,837,502 2,544,115
EXPENSES 7
Rental Expense 474,946 594,359 1,747,915
Salaries and Benefits 597,650 581,395 435,520
Depreciation 132,571 347,313 347,925
Professional Fees 175,217 197,340 153,990
Office Expense 101,149 120,615 148,082
Multi-Modal Expenses 621,901 85,275
Other Expenses 550,828 410,620 330,313
Total Expenses %7 1,357,242 2,654.262 2,336,917 3,163,745
Change in Net Pesition 1) B § 711435 $ 5835703 % 1,500,585 $ (619.630)
LOCAL DEVELOPMENT CORP IE A
REVENUES 4
Fee Income 175,175 $ 24,675 $ 23,675 $ 23,675 $ 236,750
Other Income 5 83,177 174,950 1,491
Total Revenues I £ 258,352 199,625 25,166 23,675 236,750
EXPENSES
Sponsorship Expenses 148,641 152,239 60,805 81,211 65,840
General and Administrative Expenses 63,610 31,902 8,050 7,466 7,296
Total Expenses 212,251 184,141 68,855 88,677 73,136
Change in Net Position $ 46,101 $ 15484 § (43.689) § (65002) $ 163614

Note: Abstracted from Audited Financials - See Audit Reports for Complete Information
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BROOME COUNTY
INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY

5 YEAR FINANCIAL STATEMENT ANALYSIS

December 31,  December 31, December 31, December 31, December 31,

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015

Cash Flows From Operating Activities
Cash Received from Providing Services $ 294843 $ 1,124.410 $ 2,703,145 $ 3,494,828 $ 2,229,130
Cash Payments - Salaries Expense (666,583) (662,781) (597.650) (581,395) (435,520)
Cash Payments - Contractual Expenses (455,375) (453.,918) (1,916,972) (1,397,333) (2,408,219)
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities (827,115) 7,711 188,523 1,516,100 (614.609)
Cash Flows From Non-Capital Financing Activities
Principal Payments from County 36,842 5,000 12,070 83,918 89,039
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Non-Capital Financing Aetivities 36,842 5.000 12,070 83,918 89.039
Cash Flows From Capital and Related Financing Activities
Grant Revenue 784,194 3,865,806
Sale of Capital Assets 1,837,684 Y 720,183
Sale (Purchase) of Property Held for Resale 1,811,099
Purchase of Capital Assets (8,723) (3,499,227) (1,090,158) (1,951,516)
Loss on Sale of Assets (3,088,783)
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Capital and Related 2

Financing Activities 366,579 (369,975) (1,951,516)

Cash Flows From Investing Activities

Principal Payments on Notes Receivable 142,944 130,752 306,994

Principal Payments on Loans Receivable 407,915 378,419 98,569

New Loans Issued (804,500) (562,120)

New Notes Issued (710,000)

Mortgage Payments Received 31,480

Purchase of Assets Held for Sale (1,399,099)

Sale of Assets Held for Sale 710,000

Investment Income 33210 53,651

Purchase of Investments (3,384,384) (5,224,267)

Sale of Investments 805,158 714,786

Interest Income Received i _ 163,138 72,822 53,651 37,743

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Investing Asfiviti b > 473.500 (2,319.310) (116,129) (67,840) (5,343,081)
Net Change in Cash and Cash Equivaiénts i 234,504 (1,666,924) 451,043 1,162,203 (7,820,167)

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Year | 1,443,145 3,110,069 2,659,026 1,496,823 9,316,990

Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year § 1677649 _§ 1443.145 $_3.110.069 $ 2659026 $ 1,496,823

Reconciliation of Net Operating Gain (Loss) to
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities:

Operating (Loss) Gain $ (94,852) $ (327,119) § (79,000) § 1,111,934 $  (657,373)
Gain to Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities:

Depreciation 227,941 226,549 132,571 347313 347925

(Increase) Decrease in Accounts Receivable (52,500) 174,225 160,775 51,507 (51,507)

(Increase) Decrease in Notes Receivable (993,900)

Increase (Decrease) in Prepaid Expenses 43,226 (79,938) 7,945

Increase (Decrease) in Accounts Payable 60,398 13,994 7,069 10,876 (35,864)

Increase (Decrease) in Unearned Revenue (17,428) (32,892) (5,530) (225,735)
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities § 482711 15! S 7.711 $ 188I§2_3= $ 1,516,100 $  (614,609)

Note: Abstracted from Audited Financials - See Audit Reports for Complete Information

22



BROOME COUNTY
INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY
AND LOCAL DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION

AUDIT FOCUS: REPORTING OBJECTIVES
1) Basic Financial Statements
*Management's Discussion and Analysis
*Statement of Net Position
*Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position
*Statement of Cash Flows
*Notes to Financial Statements
2) Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters

AUDIT APPROACH
*Preliminary Planning
*Consideration of Internal Control Over Financial Reporti
*Tests of Controls
*Tests of Compliance with Laws and Regulations
*Substantive Testing Financial Information (Inclugé

UNDERSTANDING THE AGENCY'S OPERATIONS ¢
*Services Provided .
*Assessment of Accounting and Reporting Siste
*Nature of Activities

{verall Fin
*Appropriate Segregation of Dities
*Ability to Demonstratel € omgpliance with Laws and Regulations
*Effectiveness of BudgetProcess Administration
*Accuracy and Comprehensiveness of Internal Reporting
*Existence of Adequate Policies and Procedures

*Ability to Issue Timely and Accurate Financial Reports
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COMMUNICATION WITH THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE
AT THE CONCLUSION OF THE AUDIT

Board of Directors
Broome County Industrial Development Agency
Binghamton, New York y 2

We have audited the financial statements of the Broome Co_l.lgéy Indyitrial Development Agency (the
Agency), a component unit of the County of Broome,%v ork, for-.\ﬁhe year ended December 31,
2019. Professional standards require that we provide y with informatipn about our responsibilities
under generally accepted auditing standards and Go ernthent’ Auditing Standards, as well as certain
information related to the planned scope and timing of ‘s audit. We have communicated such
information in our letter to you dated Decemberf 18, 2019. Pf'efc;agional standards also require that we
communicate to you the following information rei‘;ai‘ed}@jaur apdit.

Significant Audit Matters g

£ . \ \
Pii b \

Qualitative Aspects of A ccountinﬁ Practides s

Management is responsible for the selectidn and use of appropriate accounting policies. The significant
accounting policies used bﬁ‘he Agency arg géscribed in Note 1 to the financial statements. No new
accounting policies werg@dopted andithe application of existing policies was not changed during 2019.
We noted no transactions\'e\.l\iftcred inig by the Agency during the year for which there is a lack of
authoritative guidance or conée{?sus%All significant transactions have been recognized in the financial
statements in the proper period. ',,

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are
based on management’s knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions
about future events. Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their
significance to the financial statements and because of the possibility that future events affecting them
may differ significantly from those expected. The most sensitive estimates affecting the financial
statements were depreciation expense and fair value measurements for investments.

Management’s estimate of depreciation expense is based on the estimated usefil lives of capital
assets and fair value of investments is based on fair value hierarchy and market conditions. We
evaluated key factors and assumptions used to develop these estimates in determining that they are
reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole,
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Certain financial statement disclosures are particularly sensitive because of their significance to
financial statement users. The most sensitive disclosures affecting the financial statements were loans
receivable, property held for resale, notes receivable, and capital assets.

The disclosures of loans receivable, property held for resale, notes receivable, and capital assets are
presented in Notes 5, 6, 7, and 11 to the financial statements.

The financial statement disclosures are neutral, consistent, and clear.

Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit
We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing

our audit.

Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements 3

Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likgfy Misstatements identified during
the audit, other than those that are clearly trivial, and commum‘éa%a them to the appropriate level of
management. Management has corrected all such mlssthmen\?& In addition, none of the
misstatements detected as a result of audit procedures apd Corrected by management were material,
either individually or in the aggregate, to the Age financial st'g‘ztements taken as a whole.
Additionally, we assisted management with certain él‘dsihg/ﬁnﬁies, which is considered a nonaudit

service.

% ,
Disagreements with Management \ . ./
For purposes of this letter, a disagreement with m gemgnt is a financial accounting, reporting, or
auditing matter, whether or not resolyed o, our safjsfaction, that could be significant to the financial
statements or the auditors’ report. W€ are pleased to vegort that no such disagreements arose during the
course of our audit. QS 4
- ’< i ; ‘\‘
Management Representatighs 4

We have requested cel;uﬁ'n. representations” from management that are included in the management
)

representation letter dated ) , 2020,

Management Consultations with Dtier Independent Accountants

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and
accounting matters, similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations. If a consultation
involves application of an accounting principle to the Agency’s financial statements or a determination
of the type of auditors’ opinion that may be expressed on those statements, our professional standards
require the consulting accountant to check with us to determine that the consultant has all the relevant
facts. To our knowledge, there were no such consultations with other accountants.

Other Audit Findings or Issues
We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and

auditing standards, with management each year prior to retention as the Agency’s auditors. However,
these discussions occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship and our responses

were not a condition to our retention.
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Other Matters
We applied certain limited procedures to the Management’s Discussion and Analysis, which is

required supplementary information (RSI) that supplements the basic financial statements. Our
procedures consisted of inquiries of management regarding the methods of preparing the information
and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic
financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial
statements. We did not audit the RSI and do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the

RSIL

We were engaged to report on the Schedule of Projects, which accompanies the financial statements
but is not RSI. With respect to this supplementary information, we made certain inquiries of
management and evaluated the form, content, and methods of preparing the information to determine
that the information complies with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America, the method of preparing it has not changed from the priar period, and the information is
appropriate and complete in relation to our audit of the ﬁnangi_éf statements. We compared and
reconciled the supplementary information to the underlying agfelnting records used to prepare the

-

financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, { %

Restriction on Use % J

This information is intended solely for the use of the Boafd of Directors, Audit Committee, and
management of the Agency and is not intended to be, and showld not be, used by anyone other than these
specified parties. \ ) T

X 2
Respectfully submitted, L )
Jf' f 14
%

¢ 7/
Insero & Co. CPAs, LLP  _ @ )
Certified Public Accountaryé  ~ o

o T 7
Ithaca, New York o 1 '
, 2020 @
/
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

Board of Directors
Broome County Industrial Development Agency
Binghamton, New York

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the
Agency (the Agency), a component unit of the County of Broomf§,
December 31, 2019, and the related notes to the financial#ate
Agency’s basic financial statements as listed in the Tabl '

oS

@ine County Industrial Development
W¥ork, as of and for the year ended
Bich, collectively comprise the

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements &
Management is responsible for the preparation’y
accordance with accounting principles generally acg
design, implementation, and maintenance of interp
presentation of financial statements thats

Auditors’ Responsibility

ns its coitained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the® United Stafes. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
: €ther the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

obtain reasonable assurance abqiit wh
An audit involves performing proCedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the Agency’s preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Agency’s
internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.
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Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respectively financial position of Broome County Industrial Development Agency as of December 3 1,
2019 and the changes in financial position and cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the Management’s
Discussion and Analysis on pages 4-4d be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such
information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the
basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied

certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information jff actordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America, which consistedi quiries of management about the

. ovide any assurance on the
"With sufficient evidence to express an

el inigh on the financial statements that collectively
. Te Schedule of Projects is presented for purposes of

comprise the Agency’s basic financial siates _
W of the basi¢ financial statements.

additional analysis and is not a requif

pOns1 Bt of: agement and was derived from and relates directly to
ther, recaids’ used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such

tional profedures, including comparing and reconciling such information
directly to the underlying accow fiting gnd other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to
the basic financial statements thewtselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the Schedule of Projects is
fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.
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Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
, 2020, on our consideration of the Agency’s internal control over financial reporting and
on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements
and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal
control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Agency’s internal control over financial reporting or on compliance.
That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in
considering Broome County Industrial Development Agency’s internal control over financial reporting and

compliance.

Respectfully submitted,

Insero & Co. CPAs, LLP
Certified Public Accountants

Ithaca, New York
, 2020
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BROOME COUNTY
INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
DECEMBER 31, 2019

The following Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) provides a comprehensive overview of
the Broome County Industrial Development Agency’s (the Agency) financial position as of December 31,
2019 and the results of its operations for the year then ended. Management has prepared the financial
statements and related footnote disclosures along with this MD&A. The MD&A should be read in
conjunction with the audited financial statements and related footnotes of the Agency, which directly

follow the MD&A.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
® The assets of the Agency exceeded its liabilities at the close of the fiscal year ended December 31,

2019 by $25,776,683 compared to $28,624,986 at December 3 1,42098.

* Total revenues in 2019 were $(1,462,254) compared to revg fuesy f $2,068,677 in 2018. The large
decrease stems from the loss on sale of property and equipwent as Wl 'S S))roperty held for resale to
promote economic development. 4 '

A p "_,% p
® Total expenses of $1,386,049 in 2019 increased by $28,80% from total expenses 0f$1,357,242 in 2018.
The increase in expenses is due to increases essionglyfees consisting of professional service
contract and legal fees. - g

Rrepared in accordance with accounting principles

The financial statements of the Agene§ e
generally accepted in the United & Amen as prescribed by the Governmental Accounting

Standards Board (GASB). i

The basic financial statemegffs consi bf "'énent of Net Position, a Statement of Revenues, Expenses
and Changes in Net Pogitigin, a etfient 6f Cash Flows, and accompanying notes. These statements
provide information on the 1§ lancial position of the Agency and the financial activity and results of its
operations during the year. A mljgﬁon of these statements follows:

* Statement of Net Position presents information on all the Agency’s assets and liabilities, with the
difference between the two reported as net position. Over time, increases or decreases in net position
may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the Agency is improving or

deteriorating.

* Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position presents information showing the
change in the Agency’s net position during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are
reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of
cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses reported in this statement include all items that will result in

cash received or disbursed in future fiscal periods.

® Statement of Cash Flows provides information on the major sources and uses of cash during the year.
The cash flow statement portrays net cash provided or used by operating, non-capital financing, capital
financing, and investing activities.
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BROOME COUNTY

INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
DECEMBER 31, 2019

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE AGENCY AS A WHOLE
Owr analysis below focuses on the net position (Figure 1) and changes in net position (Figure 2) of the

Agency’s activities.

Figure 1
- Total Dollar
Condensed Statement of Net Position ___ Total Agency Change
2018 2019 2018-2019
Current Assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalents - Unrestricted $ ; $ 671,806 |$ (149,923)
Investments 3,6 6,897,363 (156,311)
Accounts Receivable 7 52,500 52,500
Pass-Through Receivable 19,938 12,464 (67,474)
Due from County 92,340 71,659 (20,681)
Notes Receivable - Current Portion 055 443,335 401,280
Loans Receivable - Current Portion 97,283 322,941 (74,342)
Mortgage Receivable - Current Portion »’131,054 135,039 3.985
Total Current Assets 8.618.073 8.607.107 (10,966)
Noncurrent Assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalents - ReSWix 621,416 1,005,843 384,427
Notes Receivable - Noncurrent Porr 536,522 1,087,087 550,565
Loans Receivable - 1,681,259 1,454,961 (226,298)
Mortgage Receivable 3,115,600 3,087,453 (28,147)
Due from County - 230,202 214,041 (16,161)
Due from anghamton-Loc 385,000 385,000
Property Held for Resale 3,908,116 2,097,017 (1,811,099)
Capital Assets, Net 9,972,433 7,915,531 (2,056,902)
Total Assets 28,683,621 | 25.854,040 (2,829.581)
Current Liabilities:
Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses 33,563 69,713 36,150
Unearned Revenue 24,231 6,803 (17,428)
Security Deposits 841 841 -
Total Liabilities 58.635 77,357 18,722
Net Position:
Net Investment in Capital Assets 9,972,433 7,915,531 (2,056,902)
Restricted for Loans 2,845,902 2,544,862 (301,040)
Unrestricted . 15,806,651 15,316,290 (490,361)
Total Net Position § 28,624,986 |$ 25,776,683 [§ (2.848.303)
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BROOME COUNTY
INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY |

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS _'
DECEMBER 31, 2019 |

Total assets decreased 9.86% This decrease stems from the sale of capital assets as well as property held
for resale. This was partially offset by an increase in accounts and notes receivable due to the closing ofa
PILOT project near year end, as well as amounts due from the Binghamton LDC for the sale of property.

Total liabilities increased 31.93%, This change is due to an increase in accounts payable due to the timing
of invoices received prior to year end.

Total net position decreased 9.95% due to the loss on sale of assets.

Our analysis in Figure 2 considers the operations of the Agency’s

Figure 2
Total Dollar
Changes in Net Position . ney Change
2018 2019 2018-2019
Operating Revenues:
Fee Income 1% 1,128,390 |$ 279,819
Rental Income & 90,398 98,612 8,014
Other Income e . 90,954 64,195 (26,759)
Nonoperating Revenues: b
Investment Income ' : 89,314 267,874 178,560
Loan Interest Earnadiig 163,138 61,272 (101,866)
Grant Income y’ 300,000 (300,000)
State Grant <, 484,194 (484,194)

Gain (Loss) on Sale; 1,908 (3,082,597) (3,084,505)
Total Revenues . $ 2,068,677 |$ (1,462.254)|% (3,530,931)
Operating Expenses: 4

Salaries and Benefits Expense $§ 662,781 |$ 666,583 |$ 3,802

Depreciation Expense 226,549 227,941 1,392

Professional Fees 98,682 139,148 40,466

Office Expense 51,218 59,764 8,546

Multi-Modal Expense 2,000 (2,000)

Other Expenses 316,012 292,613 (23,399)
Total Expenses $ 1357242 |$ 1.386.,049 [$ 28,807
CHANGE IN NET POSITION § 711435 |$ (2,848,303)[$ (3.559,738)

Total revenue decreased 170.09% from the prior year. This decrease stems from the loss on sale of
property and equipment and property held for resale. Further, the Agency saw one-time receipts of grants
and state aid in the prior year that was not received in 2019.
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BROOME COUNTY
INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY '.

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
DECEMBER 31, 2019

Total expenses increased 2.12% from the prior year. This increase is attributable to increases in
professional fees consisting of professional service contract and legal fees.

CAPITAL ASSESTS
At December 31, 2019, the Agency had invested in a board range of capital assets totaling $8,497,446

offset by accumulated depreciation of $581,915. Figure 3 shows the changes in the Agency’s capital
assets.

Figure 3
Total Dollar
Changes in Capital Assets Change
b 2018-2019

Land $ 1S (1,166,277)
Buildings and Improvements, Net (898,621)
Equipment, Net 7,996
Totals $ $ (2,056.902)

Capital assets, net decreased 20.63%. This decfi BRisibuted to the sale of land in addition to
depreciation of the Agency’s various assets. \/ )

SQling,its objectives in the three-year strategic plan which was
ySeptember 2016. The 2017 - 2020 Action Plan outlined five
oS W0 |and talent attraction, advancing the "iDistricts” in Binghamton,
Johnson City and Engicott, geducing the impact of development barriers, implementing a
comprehensive busines -,-écruitment strategy and strengthening the capacity of the Agency.
The vision of the Agencysemains the same: to be recognized as the lead economic development

organization in Broome County.

* The staff continued overseeing the County wide workforce and talent attraction initiative. The
Steering Committee which is made up of work force professionals and private entities continued its
work in implementing the workforce and attraction efforts well into the next decade.

» The Board of Directors and staff began discussions on the implementation of a strategy to address
the lack of sufficient housing for young professionals and the need for development of additional

market rate housing.

* Since receiving the federal grant from the Department of Defense to perform a Feasibility Study
for the Redevelopment of 600 Main Street, The Agency entered into contract with Elan Planning,
Design, & Landscape Architecture. Elan did research and conducted a feasibility study on what
could potentially be a successful business or community project for the site.
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INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
DECEMBER 31, 2019

® Elan also helped to conduct a Generic Environmental Impact Study (GEIS) in coordination with
the New York State Environmental Quality Review Act (SEQRA). The GEIS is to explain in full
any socio-economic and environmental affects that development of the site might have on the
surrounding communities. Throughout this GEIS/ SEQRA process The Agency had to be identified
as the lead agency and work through a 14-step process to determine any negative impacts that this
might have on the communities. This process is currently in step 10 and is scheduled to conclude in
early April of 2020. A major hurdle that this GEIS identified is that any/all development on this
property would need to be built on a raised (6 foot) foundation, so the property would need to be
filled up to that level and allowed to sit for 2 years. This is, due to the risk of ground water

contamination and flooding.

¢ The Agency has also sent a Request for Expression of Irfigrest Sl to the development community
with mixed responses. Two serious inquiries were LECCR Piesp:
The feasibility study suggested the constructionfc i fcommercial and residential)
facility, and none of the current proposals fiilfill ggestion. The Agency is currently

considering proposals and are going to resubmit the Rl in hopes to receive more interest.
R , g

: agnificas Payment in Lieu of Taxes Agreements
including the rehabilitation of the Jory at 6 Emma Street into over 100 units of

CONTACTING THE AGENCY’S RiNANGIAL
eddoprovidithe Agency’s clients, investors, and creditors with a general

overview of the Agency’s#inances'@ \dfhonstrate the Agency’s accountability for the money it
receives. If you have qu@8tions abouf report or need additional financial information, contact the
eve efit Agency at 5 South College Drive Binghamton, New York 13905,

This financial report is designedstost
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BROOME COUNTY

INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019

ASSETS

Current Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Investments

Accounts Receivable

Pass Through Receivable

Due from County - Current Portion
Notes Receivable - Current Portion
Loans Receivable - Current Portion
Mortgage Receivable - Current Portion
Total Current Assets

Noncurrent Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents - Restricted
Notes Receivable - Noncurrent Portion
Loans Receivable, Net - Noncurrent Portion
Mortgage Receivable - Noncurrent Portion
Due from County - Noncurrent Portion

Due from Binghamton Local Development Corp
Property Held for Resale
Non-Depreciable Capital Assets
Depreciable Capital Assets, Net £
Total Noncurrent Assets N

Total Assets
LIABILITIES AND 4

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable and Accrued/Expenses
Unearned Revenue

Security Deposits

Total Liabilities

NET POSITION

Net Investment in Capital Assets
Restricted for Loans
Unrestricted

Total Net Position
Total Liabilities and Net Position

See Notes to Financial Statements

37

$ 671,806
6,897,363
52,500

12,464

71,659
443,335
322,941
135,039

8,607,107

1,005,843
1,087,087
1,454,961
3,087,453

214,041

385,000
2,097,017
2,624,387
5,291,144

17,246,933

25,854,040

69,713
6,803
841

77,357

7,915,531
2,544,862
15,316,290

25,776,683

$ 25,854.040



BROOME COUNTY
INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019

Operating Revenues
Fee Income

Rental Income

Other Income

Total Operating Revenues

Operating Expenses

Salaries and Benefits
Depreciation Expense
Professional Fees

Office Expense

Other Administrative Expenses
Marketing Initiative Expenses
Pass-Through Expenses
Insurance

Repairs, Maintenance, and General
Professional Development Expense

Broome County Corporate Park Maintenance
Utilities

Total Operating Expenses
Operating Income (Loss) —

Non-Operating Revenugé
Investment Income R
Loan Interest Earned h Y

Gain (Loss) on Sale of Assets

Total Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses)
Change in Net Position

Net Position, January 1, 2019

Net Position, December 31, 2019

See Notes to Financial Statements
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$ 1,128,390

98,612
64.195

1,291,197

666,583
227,941
139,148
59,764
56,996
87,633
1,285
27,654
96,143
16,570
6,156
176

1,386,049

(94,852)

267,874
61,272
(3,082,597)

(2,753,451)

(2,848,303)
28,624,986

$ 25,776,683



BROOME COUNTY

INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019

Cash Flows From Operating Activities
Cash Received from Providing Services
Cash Payments - Salaries Expense

Cash Payments - Contractual Expenses

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities

Cash Flows From Non-Capital Financing Activities
Principal Payments from County

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Non-Capital Financing Activities

Cash Flows From Capital and Related Financing Activities
Sale of Capital Assets

Sale of Property Held for Resale

Purchase of Capital Assets

Loss on Sale of Assets

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Capital and Related Financing A¢ J‘:_': it

Cash Flows From Investing Activities
Principal Payments on Notes Receivable
Principal Payments on Loans Receivable
New Loans Issued

New Loans Issued - Binghamton LDC
Mortgage Payments Received
Purchase of Investments

Sale of Investments
Investment Income

Interest Income Received

Net Cash Provided (Used)

Net Change in Cash and Cash Rguivalents |
i /

Cash and Cash Equivalents, January 1, 2 e

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Decemifer 31,2019

Reconciliation of Net Operating Income (Loss) to Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities:
Operating Income (Loss)
Adjustments to Reconcile Net Operating Income (Loss) to Net Cash Provided
(Used) by Operating Activities:
Depreciation
(Increase) Decrease in Accounts Receivable
(Increase) Decrease in Note Receivable
(Increase) Decrease in Pass-Through Receivable
Increase (Decrease) in Accounts Payable
Increase (Decrease) in Unearned Revenue

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities

See Notes to Financial Statements
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$ 294,843
(666,583)

(455,375)
(827,115)

36,842
36.842

1,837,684
1,811,099
(8,723)

(3,088,783)

551,277

42,055
400,640
(100,000)
(385,000)
24,162
(984,269)
1,140,580
274,060
61,272

473,500
234,504
1,443,145

$ 1677.649

$ (94,852

227,941

(52,500)

(993,900)
67,474
36,150

(17.428)
$ 827,115



Note 1

BROOME COUNTY
INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2019

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The financial statements of Broome County Industrial Development Agency (the Agency) have
been prepared in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles (U.S. GAAP). The
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard setting body for
establishing U.S. GAAP for state and local governments through its pronouncements (Statements
and Interpretations). The more significant of the Agency's accounting policies are described

below.

Financial Reporting Entity

The Agency was created in 1971 by the Broome County Legislature under the provisions of
Chapter 535 of the 1971 Laws of New York State for th€ putpose of encouraging economic
growth in Broome County. The Agency is exempt fropf f@ieral, state, and local income taxes.
The Agency, although established by the Broome Cotty B of Representatives, is a separate
entity and operates independently of the County, Fhe¥A gency 15@nsidered a component unit of
the County. &£ y

The financial reporting entity consists of (a) the i
County Industrial Development Agend i
financially accountable; and (c) other orgian

oS for which the primary government is
s for'which the nature and significance of their
t, eh that exclusion would cause the reporting

ng or incomplete as set forth in GASB Statement No.

entity's financial statements ¢
14, “The Financial Repogtr

er cy are maintained on the accrual basis of accounting. Under the accrual
basis of accounting, revenues are recorded when earned. Expenses are recorded when the
liability is incurred.
Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Agency considers all highly liquid investments having an original maturity of three months
or less to be cash equivalents.
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BROOME COUNTY
INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2019

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - Continued

Investments
Investments consist of U.S. Treasury notes and are stated at fair value based on quoted market

prices.

Loans Receivable
The Agency acquired funds from the Appalachian Regional Commission in the 1970s to

administer the STEED loan fund. This program is considered a revolving loan program as the
purpose is to be able to take the repayments of existing loans,and loan those funds out to future
project applicants. The purpose of these funds is to creaté’ecdnomic development in Broome
County. A STEED loan cannot be used to finance the f an entire project. In addition, the
Agency administers business development and busi 1

loan program allows for reimbursement of ad
program. For the year ended December 31, 2044
$2,240.

Allowance for Uncollectible Loans Y d

The Agency follows the policy of evah atiinits lodns receivable to adequately reserve for

anticipated losses. Management believedal#foangreceivable are deemed collectible; therefore,
T ied as of December 31, 2019.

no reserve for the loans has @iestablishe

Capital Assets © S
All property and equipment aSquired with grant funds are owned by the Agency and are used in
' which @iy wegeBurchased. There are no revisionary interests by grantor
: sts as defined by the Agency are assets with an initial unit cost
estimated life in excess of two years. Donated capital assets are
cdfair yalue at the date of the donation. The costs of normal maintenance and
repairs that do not add'to the value of the asset or materially extend the asset’s life are not
capitalized. Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are
constructed and depreciated when placed in service.

Depreciation of property and equipment is provided on a straight-line basis over the following
useful lives:

Asset Years
Buildings 30-40
Building Improvements 10-20
Equipment 3-7
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BROOME COUNTY
INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2019

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - Continued

Equity Classifications
Equity is classified as net position and displayed in three components:

* Net Investment in Capital Assets consists of capital assets including restricted capital
assets, net of accumulated depreciation, and reduced by the outstanding balances of any
bonds, mortgage, notes or other borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition,
construction, or improvements of those assets.

* Restricted for Loans consists of net resources with caffstraints placed on their use either by
1) external groups such as creditors, grantors, contgbtllars

* Unrestricted consists of all other resourceff
in capital assets” or “restricted.”

The Agency charges a service fee for e iR, the roceeds of which are intended to offset

Non-Operating Reveny
Non-operating activities iriehu
for resale, inves nen

- paing WOF losses on disposal of capital assets or property held
me, loan interest, and state grants.

51 x-exempt bond and lease financing for qualified projects. These
bonds and leases arcghe gbligation of the borrower. Because the Agency has no obligation to

&

repay the principal and'interest of such bonds and leases, they are not reflected as liabilities in
the accompanying financial statements. The Agency receives issuance fees from the borrower
for providing this service. These fees are reco gnized immediately upon issuance of the related
debt. The Agency did not issue any bonds during 2019, nor were any bonds outstanding as of

December 31, 2019.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts
of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those

estimates.
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Note 2

Note 3

Note 4

BROOME COUNTY
INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2019

Cash and Cash Equivalents

State statutes govern the Agency’s investment policies. In addition, the Agency has its own
written investment policy. Monies must be deposited in Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation
(FDIC) insured commercial banks or trust companies located within the state. The Treasurer is
authorized to use demand accounts and certificates of deposit. Permissible investments include
obligations of the U.S. Treasury and obligations of New York State or its localities.

Collateral is required for demand deposits and certificates of deposit for the Agency at 105% and
100%, respectively, of all deposits not covered by federal deposit insurance. Obligations that
may be pledged as collateral are obligations of the United Sta fes and its agencies and obligations

of the state and its municipalities and school districts.

Total bank balances of the Agency of $1,700,577 at I el 1, 2019 were covered by FDIC
insurance up to $250,000. As of December 31, 2019 11 depositwith financial institutions were
either insured or collateralized with securiticgghield by, the pledgih g financial institution in the
Agency’s name. VA

Restricted cash of $1,005,843 consistsi ifeash for Agéncy’s STEED and BDF loan funds.

Pass-Through Receivable
The Agency has facilitated theigcei
organizations. As of De

Investments >
The Agency gfifegorizes itsWair vélue measurements within the fair value hierarchy established
by generally accopted accodting principles. The hierarchy is based on the valuation of inputs
used to measure the'fair vajte of the asset. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in active markets for
identical assets; Leve ”f inputs are significant other observable inputs; Level 3 inputs are

significant unobservable inputs,

The Agency has the following recurring fair value measurements as of December 3 1,2019: U.S.
Treasury notes of $6,897,363 are valued using quoted market prices (Level 1).
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INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2019
Note 5 Loans Receivable
Loans receivable, net is summarized as follows:
Business Business
Development Retention
Revolving Loan STEED and Expansion Total
Principal Balance at January 1 $ 655,828 $1,273,934 $ 148,780 $2,078,542
New Loans 50,000 50,000 100,000
Principal Repayments (70.,224) (320,219) (10,197) (400,640)
Balance at December 31 635,604 9 15 188,583 1,777,902
Less: Current portion (81,862) 30,9 (10,177) (322,941)

Noncurrent Portion $ 553.7

Note 6  Property Held for Resale
The Agency is holding land and develop v eny

Broome County for economigde

$ 178.406 $1.454,961

¥6taling $2,097,017 of properties throughout
esale in accordance with program purposes.

Note 7 Notes Receivable
Notes receivable are summ ed as TOows at December 31, 2019
y Payment Maturity Principal
ADEC Solutions USA, In8, A _ $4,903 Monthly 8/2030 $ 536,522
Canopy Growth USA, LLC _ 0%  $400,000 to $93,900 Annually 1/2026 993,900
Balance at December 31 1,530,422
Less: Current portion (443,335)

Noncurrent Portion

44

$ 1,087,087




BROOME COUNTY
INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2019

Note8  Mortgages Receivable
Mortgages receivable are summarized as follows at December 3 1,2019:

Interest Rate Payment Maturity  Principal

265 Industrial Park Drive, LLC 2.5% $18,445 Monthly 9/2037  $3,150,073
Premium Holdings, LLC 3.0% $444 Monthly 6/2037 72,419
Balance at December 31 3,222,492

Less: Current portion (135,039)
Noncurrent Portion $3,087,453

Note9  Due From County V. % PN
During 2014, the County had a bond mature wit§ balloon payment of $426,097. The

e Agency and the County entered into a repayment
agreement to repay the afgunt tg'the Agepcy in annual installments of $5,000 over the next 20
years; commencing August $@/. Due'ft

S A
Note 10 Due From Binfhamton Lical Ic '\{elopment Corporation
at diicy entered into an agreement with the Binghamton Local

#Binghamton LDC) for the sale of land and building located at 30

agre ment calls for a $50,000 deposit at closing and payment of $30,000

per acre when the Biighamton LDC sells the property to a third party. During 2019, the

Agency sold 14.5 of 21 acres to the Binghamton LDC, with the remaining 6.5 acres to be sold

in 2020. As such, the Agency has recorded a receivable of $385,000 due from the Binghamton

LDC at December 31, 2019.
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INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2019
Note 11  Capital Assets
The detail of capital assets, net at December 3 1, 2019 is as follows:
Balance at Disposals/ Balance at
12/31/2018  Additions  Reclassifications 12/31/2019
Non-Depreciable Capital Assets
Land $3,790.664 $ (1,166,277)  $2,624,387
Total Non-Depreciable
Capital Assets 3,790,664 - (1,166.277) 2,624,387
Depreciable Capital Assets
Building and Improvements 7,095,189 (1,231,985) 5,863,204
Equipment 23,873 (22,741) 9,855
Total Depreciable Capital Assets 7.119,062 .254,726) 5,873,059
Total Historical Cost 10,909,726 (2,421,003) 8,497,446
Less Accumulated Depreciation | »
Building and Improvements 560,578 (580,114)
Equipment p (727) 22,741 (1,801)
Total Accumulated Depreciation (227,941) 583,319 (581,915)

Capital Assets, Net $ (219.218) _$ (1.837.684) _$7.915.531
Note 12 Unearned Re§ I
In March of 199 engy entered a Contract for Deed with the United States Government

iy knotvn as Air Force Plant #59. This property consists of approximately 30
acres of land on which} "’ildings of approximately 612,000 square feet are situated. The Contract
for Deed transferred all beneficial ownership interest of the property to the Agency for the sum of
$10. The U.S. Government agreed to transfer the deed to the property at no cost to the Agency
once certain environmental matters were remediated on the property. Pursuant to this transfer, the
Agency entered into a lease agreement with the tenant of the property, Lockheed Martin
Corporation. Effective September 2000, Lockheed Martin Corporation assigned the lease to BAE
Systems Controls, Inc. (BAE). The term of the amended lease was for 27 years. The amended
lease required annual rental payments of $250,000 during the first seven years, $350,000 during

the second ten years, and $500,000 during the third ten years.
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Note 12

Note 13

BROOME COUNTY
INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2019

Unearned Revenue - Continued

Annual rental was held in escrow by the Agency and dedicated exclusively to fund capital
repairs, capital maintenance, and capital improvements. If the tenant were to give notice of
termination, not less than five years prior to the effective date, these funds become sole and
exclusive property of the Agency. The tenant also was to pay the Agency a termination fee of
$2,000,000 within 30 days of termination of the lease. In addition to rental payments, the tenant
agreed to pay directly to the Agency an additional $25,000 per year during the first 10 years and
$175,000 per year during the remaining term of the lease for administrative and management fee.

As aresult of amajor flood in the fall 0f 2011, BAE Systems Controls, Inc. sustained significant
damage (well in excess of $40,000,000) to its manufacturi g fdcility. As a result, BAE notified
the Agency on November 1, 2011 of their election tosSmminate the lease in accordance with
Original Lease §4.1.B (as modified by Paragraph 6 Qe AsSigament Agreement) and (ii) notice
of Tenant's election to terminate the lease in ac o ith Real]
New York §227, of Article 7, Chapter 5 ("§2270). Thee
The Agency is working with the United Stafes % i, Force on a plan which will result in the Air
ghivironmental remediation of the property.
cAgeney will use the $500,000 insurance
faintaip Security of the site. As of December 31,
blgAor fufure costs were $0. Due to termination of the
I trust for BAE became property of the Agency. The
Gefver future expenses related to maintenance and

During the interim period prior to the s
proceeds received in 2012 to moth ballfar

Unearned revenyé€Tepres . th wkpended portion of the $500,000 insurance proceeds related
to flood dampgesustai BAE Systems Controls, Inc. During 2013, an additional $1 90,000
for sale of BAE ¢q v ivas included in unearned revenue and restricted to expenses related

fthe Agency incurred $15,925 related to the flood.

Commitments and ntingencies
The Agency is exposed to various risks of loss related to theft of, damage to, and destruction of

assets, injuries to employees, and natural disasters. These risks are covered by commercial
insurance purchased from independent third parties. Settled claims from these risks have not
exceeded commercial insurance for the past three years.

The Agency has received grants and/or program funds which are subject to audit by agencies of

the state and federal governments. Such audits may result in disallowances and a request for
return of funds. The Agency believes disallowances, if any, will be immaterial.
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Note 14

Note 15

Note 16

BROOME COUNTY
INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2019

Tax Abatements

During the time in which property is leased to a company, the property is exempt from taxes
other than special ad valorem levies and special assessments. However, the Agency executes
Payment in Lieu of Tax (PILOT) agreements, wherein the company is required to make annual
payments to the County, local municipalities, and school districts.

In 2019, $5,820,503 was received in PILOT payments compared to the $12,042,364 which
would have been received if businesses paid the full amount of property taxes; for total property
tax abatements totaling $9,023,128.

In addition to PILOTS above, $2,757,397 of sales tax and 443870 of mortgage tax abatements

were awarded.

Leases
The Agency, as lessor, has entered multiple I uﬁf’vy able opergting leases for space within its
office building through September 2022. Thé a; €eufents call for monthly payments from leases

Future minimum rentals under non-can welabiBpperatihg leases are as follows:

Amount

$ 68,000
65,000
43,750

$ 176,750

Related Party

The Agency performs/administrative and supporting services for the Broome County Local
Development Corporation (the Corporation). In addition, members of the Agency’s Board of
Directors make up the Board of Directors for the Corporation.
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BROOME COUNTY
INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY

SCHEDULE OF PROJECTS
DECEMBER 31, 2019
Exemption Sales Tax Sales Tax
Project Name Period Purpose Cap Exemptions

20 Hawley St. 2012-2022 Construction $ $
250 Main LLC N/A 17,280 6,187
265 Industrial Park Drive 2018-2037 Manufacturing
265 Main Street, LLC N/A 4,000 2,128
50 Front Street 2019-2046 Commercial 841,000 171,024
ADEC Solutions 2016-2031 Services
AOM 128 Grand Ave N/A 232,000 33,293
Broome Culinary 2018-2048 Constructio 754,000 554,283
Buckingham Manufacturing 2019-2039 Manufac S 33,000 31,287
Century Sunrise 2018-2048 640,000
Chenango Place - One Wall Street 2014-2024
Clover Communities 2012-2022 4
CR Land 2018-2028 W7 160,000
Dick's MSC and Expansion 2017-2047 9,200,000 1,240,917
EMT N/A 51,928 8,738
Freewheelin ANSCO 2020-2040 ction 1,200,000 609,615
Gannett Satellite Information - "

Network 20042010 W Ser¥ices
Good Shepherd Village 2010-204 & ic Facility
Hashey Enterprises A0 N/A ' 16,400 448
Maines - 101 Broome Corp )

Parkway Wholesale
Maines - Maple Drive - Wholesale
1435-1439 Marchuska, LLC (408 Cgffiicreg) 64,000 37,283
Metroplex (UP1 & UP2) ; Construction 1,344,720
Millennium Pipeline 2009-2024 Construction
National Pipe & Plastics &, ) N/A 418,000 9,528
Nealon Transportation - KMCC &

Ventures ‘_5’ 4 2017-2033 Transportation
Pacemaker Steel 2017-2032 Manufacturing
Printing House - Chenango Empire 2016-2026 Construction
SaveAround 2018-2038 Manufacturing 45,000 4,569
Scannell - FedEx Ground Package

System 2009-2019 Transportation
Sheedy Road/Juneberry Road 2015-2025 Construction
Skye View Heights - American

Horizons 2016-2038 Construction 400,000 11,587
Spark Broome N/A 200,000 36,510
Stellar 83 Court 2015-2025 Construction
Vitaluna 2014-2024 Construction
Washington Development Associates 2013-2032 Construction
Woodburn Court 2017-2036  Retirement Community

Total
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Current

Mortgage Tax  Payments in Property Taxes Total Base Year  Employment
Exemptions  Lieu of Taxes  if Not Exempt  Exemptions Jobs 12/31/2019
$ $ 383464 § 481,894 $ 98,430 2 7
6,187 10
210,981 258,580 47,599

2,128 13
145,686 63,614 88,952 105
12,058 44,086 32,028 1 77
43,870 77,163 36
35,878 590,161 227
31,287 359
18,357 669,994 651,637 4
146,699 428,883 282,184 4
174,562 323,229 148,667 4 2
45,233 90,466 11
37,135 1,771,152 2,974 657
126
19,255 19,688 142
193,133 252,900 -
20,397 183
619,041 625 143

117,968 51
- 2
(47,110) 12

924,311

9,528 228
12,853 16 12
57,147 57,725 578 25 88
37,173 751,125 713,952 6
27,104 134,461 111,926 41
19,059 122,081 103,022 21 57
462,797 870,591 407,794 135 158
158,486 183,184 36,285 74
36,510 85
54,202 454,385 400,183 20
157,987 199,836 41,849 61 3
295,594 760,399 464,805 7
155,269 171,553 16,284 5
$ 43,870 $ 5,820,503 $ 12,042,364 § 9,023,128 937 2,904
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS
BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Board of Directors
Broome County Industrial Development Agency
Binghamton, New York

S
We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standdrds gaperally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits'Gontefin®d in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the cial statements of the Broome County
Industrial Development Agency (the Agency), a §omp: q
of and for the year ended December 31, 2019, arg t elated #otes to the financial statements, which
collectively comprise the Agency’s financial stalegy , ind have issued our report thereon dated

, 2020. s

ur.aud e financial statements, we considered the Agency’s internal
control over financial reportifig (integ nfdel) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances for the ) éing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the
€ effectiveness of the Agency’s internal control. Accordingly, we
effegtiveness of the Agency’s internal control.

G

A deficiency in internal controf exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination
of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of
the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A
significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe
than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

do not express an opinion on

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses

may exist that have not been identified.
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Compliance and Other Matters
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Agency’s financial statements are free from

material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be
reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Agency’s internal
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the Agency’s internal control and compliance.
Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purp.

Respectfully submitted,

Insero & Co. CPAs, LLP
Certified Public Accountants

Ithaca, New York
, 2020
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MANAGEMENT COMMENT LETTER

Board of Directors
Broome County Industrial Development Agency
Binghamton, New York

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements of Broome County Industrial
Development Agency (the Agency), as of and for the year ended December 31, 2019, in accordance
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United Statg:;"oﬁ America, we considered the
Agency’s internal control over financial reporting (internal cofftrol) as a basis for designing audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the pugpose QR expressing our opinions on the
financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressigighan opimeg on the effectiveness of the
Agency’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not exfressan opiniot}, on the effectiveness of the
Agency’s internal control. - @ s

management or employees, in the normal course“éfpeiﬁmmgtheir assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely Bagif. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internaleontrol, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a
material misstatement of the Agendy’s ﬁpﬁneial statements will not be prevented, or detected and

corrected, on a timely basis. 2 4 v

Our consideration of intemﬁ"cbmm‘r waé‘\fég the limited purpose described in the first paragraph and
was not designed to i(k,‘;ﬁfy all defigienc#es in internal control that might be material weaknesses.
Given these limitations dutigy, our audiﬁ, we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we
consider to be material weak@sse%)’However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been

identified. ,
Ve

This communication is intended solely for the information and use of management, the Board of
Directors, Audit Committee, and management of the Agency, and is not intended to be, and should not
be, used by anyone other than these specified parties.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the, design or:'aqufation of a control does not allow

Respectfully submitted,

Insero & Co. CPAs, LLP
Certified Public Accountants

Ithaca, New York
~,2020
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BROOME COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY

PROJECT REVIEW FORM
Com : . ; IDA Meeting Date:
=2MBAMY: 4 59 Washington Holding, LLC —oA Hecling DAt 13/18/2020
Representative: ) IDA Public Hearing Date:
Josh Bishop TBD
= M - :
Type of Business: Mixed Use Housing Company Address: 5y g 1554
Project Start Date: 520 Binghamton, NY 13902
Project End Date: TRD
Employment: Total Yearly Payroll Own / Lease: SF / Acreage:
Eul-Thne Gguivalet 1st Year $ 120.000.00
Bxisting 205 2nd Year $70,000.00 Oown 20,000 sqft
;5; ver == 3rd Year $45.000.00
nd year g
3rd year __1 Total: M
Construction Jobs: Proposed Project Location:
10 159 Washington St. Bing, NY 13901
Company Contact For Bid Documents & | Description:
ploy pp ities:
Employment Opportunities *Please see attached
Josh Bishop, 607-725-9721, josh@jjbm.com
PROJECT BUDGET ASSESSMENT
Land Related Costs Current Assessment $ 121.000.00
Building Related Costs $ 1.500.000.00 Asmt. At Completion (Est.) | $ 463.000.00
M & E Costs EXEMPTION (Est.)
F F & E Costs $ 43.200.00 Sales Tax @ 8% $ 50,000.00
Professional Mortgage Tax
Services/Development Cost $ 35,000.00 $0.00
Total Other Costs Property Tax Exemption 268,807.82
Working Capital Costs
Closing Costs
Agency Fee $ 15,782.00 TOTAL EXEMPTIONS: |5 318,807.82
TOTAL: | $ 1,593,982.00 TOTAL PILOT PAYMENTS:$ 325,900.76
Project Type Project Criteria Met
(Check all that apply) (Check all that apply)
Manufacturing, Warehousing, Distribution DProject will create and for retain permanent jobs
Agricultural, Food Processing @ |Project will be completed in a timely fashion
Adaptive Reuse, Community Development | @ |Project will create new revenue to local taxing
Housing Development jurisdictions
Retail* |® |Project benefits outweigh costs
Back Office, Data, Call Centers Other public benefits
Commercial/Office
*Uniform Tax Policy does not typically provide tax exemptions for Retail Projects | *New York State Required Criteria
Pilot Type
[e]Standard 10 year [
[JDeviated year

Staff Comments:

54



Project Description — 159 Washington Holding, LLC

Former Ellis Brothers furniture business, 4 story mixed use building in
downtown Binghamton. Approximately 20,000 sq ft to be renovated into 27
one- and two-bedroom apartments geared towards young professionals
working in downtown Binghamton. Seeking 1%t floor commercial tenants.
This is a historic building and the front fagade will be preserved in
accordance with local CAUD and State Historic Preservation guidelines.
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Date:
Project Name/Address:

Project Start Date:

Project Description:

BENEFIT
Investment: Public/Private/Equity

Building Related Costs
FF&E Costs
Professional Fees/ Development

TOTAL INVESTMENT

New Mortgages
Jobs

New

Retained

TOTAL JOBS

Term # Years
TOTAL PAYROLL
PILOT PAYMENTS

TOTAL BENEFIT

Cost

Property Tax Estimate
Fair Market Value
Equalization Rate

Taxable Assessment

Tax Rates

County
School
City

ANNUAL TAX

Broome County Industrial Development Agency
Cost Benefit Incentive Analysis

3.6.2020

159 Washington Holding, LLC

2020

Former Ellis Brothers furniture business, 4 story mixed use building in
downtown Binghamton. Approximately 20,000 sq ft to be renovated into 27 one-
and two-bedroom apartments geared towards young professionals working in
downtown Binghamton. Seeking 1st floor commercial tenants. This is a historic
building and the front fagade will be preserved in accordance with local CAUD
and State Historic Preservation guidelines.

$ 1,500,000.00
$ 43,200.00
$ 35,000.00

$1,578,200.00

o
[= B ]

10

$ 235,000.00

$ 325,900.76

$ 2,139,100.76

$ 463,000.00
79.00%

$ 586,075.00

9.155881
42.754372
40.761629

92.671882

years

(see Pilot Schedule)

upon completion

Annual tax
Annual tax
Annual tax
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25,057.27
5,366.03
23,889.37

54,312.67

$1.578,200.00

$ 235,000.00
$ 325,900.76
$ 2,139,100.76

number based on 1st year



Pilot Schedule

Terms/Years Tax % Abatement *Pilot Payment Abatement
SEE PILOT SCHEDULE .
Total
* Assume a 2% Tax Increase Per Year
PROPERTY TAX ABATEMENT $ 268,807.82
SALES TAX ABATEMENT $ 50,000.00
MORTGAGE RECORDING TAX
AGENCY FEE $ 15,782.00
TOTAL COST $ 334,589.82 334,589.82
NET BENEFIT/COST 1,804,510.94
Benefit/Cost Ratio 6.39 to 1

Comments/Additional Revenue:

Any Additional Public Benefits:

58



‘ T_‘l EAG E N C Y Vo arg g 5 o ane and would
! : like o riytz 3 19, pleaze
BROOME COUNTY 104 / Loc  %viwlc 1 puisy

APPLICATION FOR BENEFITS / IDA

MSTRUCTIONS

1. mmummwmmhumuum-ﬁmmmm
mmum-mmbmmmmm

2 mhdmwmamwum-mmm' Is not approprieds ko the project which s the sutiect of his
appicaton (the Projach),

3 mmnmmummmn-wnumwm.mnm

4, Ummbmbmmmmdﬁm-mm
3 mmmm“mmmammm“mwmbmmnhmMﬂdm

& The Agencytoa, uumwwbhmﬂm’: Unill tho R receives a completed mmmm'
NWMbhmdlﬁm

substendel o the spplicent's _ e i such elsmants In and #xh elements be
‘ 'gw oy umm wﬁ:’lmw wiking and request bazgt

8  The AgercySDA has eotatishad 8 project foe for each project n which the Agenog DA paricipates. THIS PROJECT FEE of 1% of the foia!
MMBWWE%WWWATMMWMWGWWWNMW
mmmwmmuwbmbnmlwumhmmhm
msmmnmmumm

10. The AgsnoynB& mmmmmuammmmmmmmuunum

Joruamry 4 ummudmmm‘mwumwm

11. aanmumsmammammm ‘ Lav’), estadiished nei recond ke and

mm requirernants for inckasdia’ et spencien Mm“&mmmmeWmﬁ?w
mummamum‘mbmmm@mmmmbh&hmmaumh
st repcrt 15 amount of saies to: benesis Intandad (o b

de mmmmmmum _
mv rid muwmmummmmmmmunmm
2t areemants.

12 mmwmmmuummﬁna‘*umm 1) 2 Project s not enliled © recsive thoss
M@hmmt-mnm«ﬁmhuﬂmmwm or 3) the Project opereter falisd to
um«mmmmwnmmum

13 mwmnmummnmmmhum-wmn:mdu
wmbhmw‘;ﬁt %WBWMEWMMMT&K

as Budgst regulstions expeched mm-nwumn
Mhmm-rymmmumuhuhu

14 Applicants as & condiion to Financial Aselstance @ salas fmx tax resl [~
mm mwwmmuhmmbmmm&mmmmnmnm:;
mAdnmucmmnmmmmumumm




APPLICATION FOR FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE

APPLICANT
W& 159 Washington Holding LLC

MPCUTIMET e PO Box 1554
o  Binghamton TE NY = 13002 Mo 7259721
llllfﬂilllﬂlllill!l'lﬂilHllﬂllﬂﬂlmmIEH!!HWIIIIHIIIII

Josh Blshop N | e 725.9721
ME Managing Member . josh@jbpm.com

APPLICANT'S COUNSEL
WE Lillian Levy
A HHK BUL flevy@hhk.com

#09%% -80 Exchange St

A% Vieira & Assoclates 84 pprice@vape.us
sstss. 111 Grant Ave Sulte 106 i

VE Eouth Collage Drive, Suits 201 Binghamton, NY 13905 607.584.9000 THEABERCY-HY.COM

™ Binghamton TENY P 13901 ™ 647.231.6725 _

" Endicot  WENY @ 13760 s 807.-723-1272 ext 104
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PROJECT SUMMARY
A: TYPE OF PROJECT: Select Project Type for all end users at project site {you may check more than one):

[ ndustrial Housing | |Multi-Tenant | ]Back Office Mixed Use [ Joiic Facilty (not for proft
[ "] Acquisition of Exiting Facility | | Equipment Purchase [ | Commercial [ |Retait | |Facility for Aging [ ]other
: : \ . NEWJoBS =
B: EMPLOYMENT IMPACT (BRODME COUNTY): EXISTING JOBS: _O____,; WITHIN THREE YEARS: 5 |
C: PROJECTCOST. § | 1,578,200 | D TYPEOFFINANCING: | | TAX-EXEMPT [ ] mxaBLe [ ] sTRAVGHT LEASE

E: AMOUNT OF BONDS REQUESTED: $|

F: AMOUNT OF NEW MORTGAGE(S) REQUIRED FOR PROJECT: $§ [

6: PROJECT-RELATED COSTS SUBJECT TO SALES TAX: $ |6 2 5,000

H: ESTIMATED VALUE OF TAX EXEMPTIONS:

| MORTGAGE RECORDING TAXES  § | ]

NYS SALES AND COMPENSATING USETAX  § | 50 660

REAL PROPERTY TAXEXEMPTIONS §| 268 807.82 | REQUESTED TERMOF PILOT: 10 years

OTHER (PLEASE SPECIFY) | 8

CURRENTPROPERTYTAGSS 11,213.30

I: CURRENT PROPERTY TAX ASSESSMENT $(121,000

APPLICANT INFORMATION

EMPLOYER'S FEDERAL ID NO. !83-356__9800 _ _ NAICS CODE B

1. INDICATE TYPE OF BUSINESS ORGANIZATION OF APPLICANT:

A [ ] CORPORATION INCORPORATED IN WHAT COUNTRY | | WHAT STATE

DATE INCORPORATED TYPE OF CORPORATION | |

L

AUTHORIZEDTO DO BUSINESS INNEWYORK: | | YES | | Mo

B. D PARTNERSHIP  TYPE OF PARTNERSHIP # OF GENERAL PARTNERS # OF LIMITED PARTNERS j

C. [ | SOLEPROPRIETORSHIP
D. I LIMITED LIABILITY APPLICANT DATE CREATED | 1/31/2019

2. ISTHE APPLICANT A SUBSIDIARY OR DIRECT OR INDIRECT AFFILIATE OF ANY OTHER ORGANIZATION(S)? IF SO. NAME OF RELATED GRGANIZATION(S) AND RELATIONSHIP:

I | | ) _

FIVE South College Drive, Suite 201, Binghamton, NY 13905 607.584.9000 THEAGENCY-NY.COM
61




MANAGEMENT OF APPLICANT

List ofl owners, directors and partners

© KANEARD RONE ADDRESS

Josh Bishop 16 Gont O, Binghamion,
NY 13905

mmmﬂwmmmmmmmmmmm OWHERL DIRECTOR. GFFICER, PAETNER OR
ANY CONTRACTOR AFFLUTED WITH THE PROPOSED PROJECT BESN THE SUSSELT 68,

1.mmmmmmdmm,mmmm w e

mmmmmm.gaw

znm‘w«mmdmwamdwm Ew

mmmmm.«umumwm bl

a mmmmmaam«mmmmwm

u:ybarhwm B &0

4. 2 conaent order with the NY'S Dept. of Ermironments! Conservation? s oW

ammmwwmwmmmmwm

feciers!, stats or kool govemmant agency Including, but not Bimited to, judgments besed on v Ew

amwmlmwwawwmmmmmMﬂmﬂMW F

been in recelvership or been adjudicated in @ banknuptoy? w OEw
15 YES, PLEASE FURNISH DETAILS ON A SEPARATE ATRACHMENT

APPLICANT PUBLICLY RELO? VE W 0 LISTDRANGES WIERE STOCKIS TRADED AND LIST AL STOCKEOLACES
o ' RAVIN0 A 5 OR MORE INTEREST B THE APRLICANT

VE South College Drive, Suite 201, Binghamton, NY 13605 607.584.0000 THEASEECT-NY.CON i-1




APPLICANT'S PRINCIPAL BANK(S) OF ACCOUNT Tioga State Bank

PROJECT DATA
1.%&%%%“ Msﬂmwon,mmlmswmmm fout
by usags, type of constnuction, M&wﬁm mmum.mwm e

;Mamdmmnﬁmw@mum
¢mmummumummummwmw.
&mm»wdtewmwummmnm.m_m

Utilities on site, water, electric, sewer, gas,

6. Who presenty Is legel owner of bullding or she? 150 Washington Holding LLC

awm.mmhmummwmmmhmm
Rmmm.he,mm " am
. 18 hste, 2 exdeling or propossd eese for &1 of & portion of the project? Ewm w _

— o Luma Pf%zg‘r & \:q_g:v\ an “"‘f&\;&

r.wwwmw1mdhmumammmmmm , on ) on &

soperate shoe! includ mm.mmmw;mmm.mdmmnw.mmmm

orgentzation, relationship to applicant, dats end term of lease, Q'% “/&‘&(

, e 5 \0 -

§-Is cwner ortenartle) resporsiv for peyment of ree roperty taves? O !yes . AL R
8 Zoning cistrictn which Project Is locaisd  C-2 Downtown Business o

1am¢mwv&ﬂmuwmm7 i yze, ploase explain: . Y Omow
‘Planning approvals complste ‘
Ii.mlhommhaijeetmul!hhomwddaplm«hﬂudholaﬂmmor s B W
mpmpued‘mﬁofhmﬁommmofhmumvukbmm

of the Stats? if yes, plesse explaln;
mmmmndhmmmmw@mmwamammm« s ¥

faclities of the Applicant located in New York stets? Hyes, plesse explain:

VE South College Drive, Sulte 201, Binghsmton, NY 13305 607.584.9000 TREABENCY-HY.00M 5-1
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IS.NMMmqum11 or 121s yes, indicele whether any of the following sppiy to the Project

&lomPrqmmauynmmybmvehmuﬁWemwmdﬁnw o ]
N

or such Project Ocaupant? if yes, please explal

B.thmanulry] to tiscourage
mmmmmmmanvmemnmmm:

14.Doummpethdudomormly_, Mmmwhmmmdm " Ew
uouvhabmnmmmmmm.ﬂ if yss, pineas exploin:

wﬂmmwmubmmmﬁgaofmmuhmmhw
mmmumm@whmmmummﬂm R 4
ummmmmm

16, If the enswer to question 14 I8 yos, and the answer to question 15 is more than 33.33%, indicate whether any of

the following apply 1o the
Ammmmumwlmmmmm if yes, plases evplain = i W

B. mmmm‘m-mm:ﬁnumwowummmmw ;
development region in which the Project wll bo loceted? ifyes, ploase plai woe

c. wmmmmmmmmmmm = 1 B
Agency, locate the r jobe outaide New York atste? Ifyes, please explain:

D. uummdmmwmmmammm e K
not, but for tha Project, hmmﬂbm;m«m&mm«m

mmmmﬂmwm,mdamaw-mumw
trads faciiies offering such goods or services? Wyes, please explain:

VE South College Drive, Sulte 201, Binghsmion, NY 15905 807.564.0000 THEASENSY-HY.COM
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&wmmumummdm'mwﬁmammmmmm v
Oevelopmartt 2ons pursuant o Aiticle 18-8 dh@mmm Lew; or 2) & census tract or @ B
memem(wmmmwuﬂ_mmmmmﬂm)m
mmwmmmnmmmnmmmaammwmw
mmmupdmmmtmmmhwmmummww

én unempioyment rete of st least 1.25 times the statewide unssmployment rate for the
ummmmwmmm: a ;
—_— L g~ 0?0\-' LM\-‘—-| 'ZQV'G_‘ AL;%&
— Mee po- le U |
oves” 289 (23339 Lor fms@m&“, !
ﬁnmmmmwmmmqmqum«umwmmm ) " “"o"“‘““"j

preasrve permanert, piivate sector Jobs of incrense the overall number of psmanest,
pﬁmmmhmmam'{m

17. Fisase indicats &3 mﬁmmm,mmmmummmaum,
cky, MWMWMdWMMMYnmﬂmm apencies, boerds, public benefit
X WM“M)Wh'mquMMWWAWW&

Municipal building permit in progress, SHPO and NPS review in progress, and CAUD review |
wiil be necessary. City of Binghamton Dept of Bullding and Code, SHPO, and CAUD.

1&. mmmwmmawmm«mmmm
SHPO review for historic tax credits, NPS review for the same HTC's. Local building dept wili
review and approve the building permit.

18 Mas congdruction work on this project begun? ifyes, plazee discuss In detat! the spprdmate
mdmmmmammmywmm-m B mm
mmmmmummmW.mmd

foundztions, instalistion of foolings, ete.

20. mmmmxwmummmwmwmmmwm(s)yemmmmma
such expenditures:

$160,000 for down payment on the purchase ($800,000) - Architectural and enginesring

work to date - $25,000

21, Does the utilize resource conversation, efficlency, and sliemative and renswable
energy measus W"?F loase explain: o energy efficiency, green technologiss,

Water source heat pumps will be utilized for heating and cooling within each apartment, an
energy efficient method of heating and cooling.

fE Bouth College Drive, Sulte 201, Binghsmion, NY 13905 607.504.0000 THEABEICY-KY.LOM
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PROJECT BENEFITS/COSTS
1. NAME OF PROJECT BENEFICIARY ("APPLICANT): | 1 i Wasmn_gtorl Holding, LLC

2. ESTIMATED AMOUNT OF PROJECT BENEFITS SOUGHT:

A. Amount of Bonds Sought $ ‘

B. Value of Sales Tax Exemption Sought $ 50,000.00

C. Value of Real Property Tax Exemption Sought $ | 268,807.82 |

D. Value of Mortgage Recording Tax Exemption Sought  § |

E. Interest Savings IRB Issue $ |
3. SOURCES AND USES OF FUNDS:
Financing Sources Application of Funds
Equity $ 378,200.00 Land $
Local Banks $ 1,200,000.00 Building Acquisition/Construction $ 800,000.00
$ Expansion/Renovation $ 700,000.00
$ Machinery & Equipment $
$ Working Capital $
$ Other $ 78,200.00
TOTAL $ 1,578,200.00 TOTAL $ 1,578,200.00

. . Former Elfis Brothers furniture business, 4 story mixed use building in downtown Binghamton. Approximately 20,000 sq ft ;
Pmlm Desmlm“"! to be renovated into 27 one- and two-bedroom apartments geared towards young professionals working in downtown
Binghamton. Seeking 1st floor commercial tenants. This is a historic building and the front fagade will be preserved in
accordance with local CAUD and State Historic Preservation guidelines. We are seeking a PILO to assist in keeping the

rents affordable to young professionals.

FIVE South College Drive, Suite 201, Binghamton, NY 13905 607.584.9000 THEAGEHCY_—NY.CGM 8-19
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4. PROJECTED PROJECT INVESTMENT:

A. Buiding and Land Related Costa $
1. Land acquisition
$ 800,000.00
2 Acquisition of existing structres g oo
3. Renovation of esting stuctures 700,000.00
4. New constnuction §
C- Machinery end Equipment Costs $
D. Fumitre and Fixture Coats $-43,200.00
E. Working Caphtal Costs $
F. Professions) ServiceaDevelopment Coats
1. Architactire and Engineering $ 35,-000.(_)0~
2. Accountinghegal $
3. Dovelopmert Fee $
4. Other service-related costs (descrive) '
Q. Othes Costs $ !
H. 8ummary of Expenditres 1., Tots! Land-Related Costs $
2. Tota! Bullding-Relsted Costs $ 1,500,000.00
2 Tota! Machinery snd Equipment Costs ‘l o
4. Total Fumiturs and Fadure Costs $ '43,200.00
8. Total Working Caplts! Costy $
6. Tota! Professional SenvicesDevelopment Costs $ 35,000.00 _
7. Total Other Coats $:

WMok ¢ 1,578,200.00 -

AGENCY FEE 1% $ 15,782.00
115 F P 08

TOTAL PROJECT EXPENDITWRES § 1,593,982.00

€ South Collsge Drive, Sulte 201, Binghamion, NY 13005 €07.584.0000 THEASENCY-HV.CON -0

67




mwmumwmmmm the epplicant?
I yes, please provide deteds: oythes o X0

Bullding acquisition, $800,000 total, $160,000 paid by appiicant, $640,000 mortgage

Pmmwmmmmmmmmmm

- Ra d\t%’\kar\ mmé Fruns QL =Y \q—\&‘«&u\h
\\\S’\‘W\Q vﬂ(ll.r'\"v

mmmm
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.. (Anual weges end benelis 840,000 endunder) (Annus! wages and benefis over £40,000)

oUgET ';:o.o,o

YERR 1 ,;Ep.oo - ) . 1,00

YEW2

YEAR 3

mmaumdwwmwmawmmamm

H

# iz the of The fo the fo use local febor, contractors and in that
poﬁq; Agency/TDk w:ar.wmmm- . ,%m
mmuwmmmmmnmmmm.mmmm
WMMMMMWrm

-

VE South Coliags Drive, Suite 201, Binghamton, NY 13005 807.584.6000 THEABERLY-KY.COM t0-1
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PROJECTED PERMANENT EMPLOYMENT IMPACT

PROJECTED EMPLOYMENT FIGURES - YEAR ONE

UNDER $30,000 $30.000-$50000  $50.000 - $75.000 OVER $75.000

‘_
N
i

T
Number of Full-Time Employees (FTE) eaming [1 [
— — . |
‘ Number of Part-Time Employees eaming J3 } |
M — . == =—— | B
Total Payroll For Fulk-Time Employees $ 45,000.00 |
| Total Payroll For Part-Time Employees $ 175.000.00 ‘
i' |
Total Payroll For All Employees $ 1120,000.00 '
|
[ : '
| PROJECTED EMPLOYMENT FIGURES - YEAR TWO UNDER $30,000 $30,000 — $50,000 $50,000 - $75.000 OVER $75,000 |
F T 4
| Number of Full-Time Employees (FTE) eaming 1 } |
- Number of Part-Time Employees eaming 1 [ |
- . N | 4
Total Payroll For Full-Time Employees $ 45,000.00 ‘
L i i —
| Total Payroll For Part-Time Employees $ (25,000.00
- Total Payroll For All Employees $ 70,000.00 J
PROJECTED EMPLOYMENT FIGURES - YEAR THREE UNDER $30,000 $30,000 - $50,000 $50,000 - $75,000 OVER $75.000
| ) ]
Number of Full-Time Employees (FTE) eaming ‘ 1 |
o +—
Number of Part-Time Employees eaming [ |
— o _ — = .
Total Payroll For Full-Time Employees $ 45,000.00
|
| | _
Total Payroll For Part-Time Employees $
| — = = —
| Total Payroll For All Employees $ (45,000.00
=" I — e enli__1| _—

FIVE South College Drive, Suite 201, Binghamton, NY 13905 607.584.9000 THEAGENCY-NY.COM
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REPRESEXTATIONS BY THE APPLICANT

MWWWWWMI:W@M
1.mﬂmnmmmammmmhammmmmmmummm&h
wmmwwmw.wﬂmhwmmum"mmmmh

Z.Mllﬂllﬂ:wﬁzmm coliectve bargaining new opporunites crested as a

e e bt G e oty s B0 505354
1 0 € Ly (ook / C, the “JTPA of the earvice ares

mm&@mmmwmcmmhmmmuw

s.mmmngmmmmmdmmeWW
Applicart understands end agross th the Project receives any Finendisl Assistance from the AgencyAit X0 @S
Ve g whare prach e Applicant wit frst consider person eligible to

QMhMAWWMu%W@MAMWWAWMWQEMG

s.mmmmmmhhmwmmmmmmmmmm
mwwmmmmmwmquummww

am:mmmwwm if the Project redelves any Financls! Assitancs from the
th%thﬂmmmmmmh

AgencyTDk, the Applicant agress &9 fis, o cause : :
number of people wguwmmmmmmmummmmuww
each yew, 8 written certification seling forth

-mummﬁwaummmummm

» Number of pert-time employses &t the Project locetion in the preceding calendar yeer,;

* Groes payroll of & employoes et the Project Jocation in the preceding calendir yeer,
7.m!mzmwm.mumbmaumuwmmbuwvw
of the biowing ocar,

-.'n-'m;muwnummmmmawmmWM¢mmm.

hﬂuvﬁe@ﬁwﬂdmhﬂumdh%%mﬂmhﬁm%dmw

 wpniEsant RdUCEon i the rumber of Al/pertdme €2 the Project Facity In compa:t:on i what wos estimetad inthe
°mmmwmmmmau ammwummm

¢mwm‘nwmmmmmmmm¢mww~ma

Tha 2 fallad 0 echisw anmmwwwmmummu
.'he W”. &y :

f. Fekure of the sppicent 1o mis Smely PILOT peyments,

@ Falizre to coopsrais with Agsncy perssnns! it providing date of project propress.

I The asplicent hea commbtied & matsrie’ vidkZion of the t7ve & condiSons. of 8 Projest sgrecmmEnt.

| The smplicent has commited & materis! violstion of S 1anma & condifons of the selis and Use e exemption beriofL

VE South Coflsge Drive, Sulte 201 Singhamion, NY 13905 607.584.9000 TREABENCY-NY.CON

i7-9

70




lr.usmu@coummﬁm:mmummmmmawnmwuqummw. officers and

Nave

l.m&ﬁﬂﬁmmﬂummmwmm loant or campaign contribxstions to any locsl or State
wwummmnmum YEB [ O IFVES, PLEASE BESCRENS:

umzmmmhmmamﬂmwmnum

mmmmnmwmhumamdhmmumm
mmnmmmmfudumbmm complignce and ovarsight: the
mwwmmmmmwﬂﬁmmmmwuwmum

159 Washington Holding LLC
Applicant

.

L~

me Mng Member

VE South Collegs: Drive, Sulte 201, Binghamion, NY 13805 607.584.9000 THEAGERCY-NY.CO0N 1B-1
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DOCUMENT LISTS
(A copy of this st should bi provided fo Appiicant's legal counee)

thmMWﬁWmMsmmmmmwmm
1. A$1,000 Application Fee. -

zMB\F(EMmaMMmmFm).
3, Have financing arrangements been made

Prior to the of this : hall deltver the dosumenistion e the
i m’cmww. foliowing {where epplicable projest)

1'

10.

12,

"l

14.

mau&nw {The Agency,

y insurance ABK named g
edditional insurad).

Cerificate of Ganerel Liablilly Insurance AgencyfiDA. named g3 additions! insured),
Limits not less then M.M.Mwmmm;amﬁdemawaummmmw
fozs than$3,000,000.
mammtmmmwmhmummma
uniform standprd extended coverage endorsement in sn amount rict fess then the full—
mmmmdmrmmwmmammmm).

Certificats of incorporetion/Aricies of Organizetion logether with all amendments :

or restuteinents thereto.
By-Laws/Opersting Agreement together with any smendments thersto.,

S —

eodmcmm(e)wmwmsuudmmawmdm s

Applicent end NYS,
Resolutions of the Board of DirectorsMembere of the Applicant approving the Project, ——

List of &1 Mazerie! Pending Litigation of the Applicant.

mdumm%vmmmmmmumumm _—

Liet of afl Required Environmsnial Penmits for the Project,
Legs! Deseription of the Projsct Premisss,

Name and ttle of person signing on behalf of the Applicant.

Copy of the proposed Morigage (i sry),

Appiicant's Federal Tax ID Number (EIN).
Texx Map Number of Parcei{s) comprising the Project.
Copy of the Certificats of Occupsncy (es eoon as aveilable)

/E South Collasge Drive, Sulle 201, Binghastion, NY 13808 007.584.0000 TNEASEKCY-NY.COM

8 ¥ 8 & =
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CERTIFICATION

The information contained in this
aware thet any material mierepreas
beneftis.

ployment inform is ue end comect The Applicant Is
m::pﬁcaﬂmmm;:?h'mdlmmmhm“

NATALIE C. ABBADESSA
Notary Public, State of New York
Registration #01AB6221930

Qualified in Broome ounty
Commission Expires £ /;

vE Bouth Callege Drive, Suite 201, Binghemton, NY 13005 607.584.0000 THEAGBICY-NY.CO
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APPENDIX A - ATTACHMENT TO APPLICATION FOR FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE

Local General Contractor, Subcontractor, Trades and Labor Policy

it is the goal of the The Agency/IDA to maximize the use of local labor for each project that receives benefits from the
Agency/IDA. This policy applies to general contractors, subcontractors, trade professionals, and their employees. The
Agency/IDA's Local Labor Area consists of the following New York State counties: Broome, Chemung, Chenango,
Cortland, Deiaware, Otsego, Schuyler, Steuben, Tioga and Tompkins.

Every applicant is obligated to provide written proof and data (see attached ... forms) to the Agency/IDA as to
the physical location of all the contractors who will work on the project.

The Agency/IDA will review the data provided and determine, on a case-by-case basis and in a fully transparent
manner, whether the Applicant has substantially conformed to the policy.

An Applicant will not be deficient if the proposed project requires specifically skilled labor that is unavailable in the Local
Labor Area.

An Applicant will not be deficient if the proposed project utilizes parts and supplies assembled elsewhere because no
such assembly is available in the Local Labor Area.

An Applicant will be held non-compliant with the Labor Policy if it imports labor from outside the Local Labor Area when
equal labor that is ready, willing, cost competitive, etc. resides in the Local Labor Area.

The Agency/IDA may determine on a case-by-case basis to waive any portion of this policy for a project or a
portion of a project where consideration of warranty issues, necessity of specialized skills, significant cost
differentials between Jocal and non-local services, documented lack of workers meeting the Local Labor
Requirement or if other compelling circumstances exist.

In consideration of the extension of financial assistance by the Agency/MDA 155 washington Holding, LLC (the
Applicant) understands the Local Labor Policy and agrees to submit either or both a Local Labor Utilization Report or a
Non Local Labor Utilization Report at the time that construction begins on the project to the Agency and as part of a
request to extend the valid date of the Agency/IDA’s tax-exempt certificate for the_isg washington st (the

project).

The Applicant understands an Agency/IDA tax-exempt certificate is valid for 90 days effective the date of
the project inducement and extended for 90 day periods thereafter upon request by the Applicant.

The Applicant further understands any request for a waiver to this policy must be submitted in writing
and approved by the Agency/IDA before a tax-exempt certificate is issued or extended.

The Applicant further understands that if the required forms are not submitted to the Agency/IDA, the Agency/
IDA shall have the authority to immediately terminate any and all Financial Assistance being provided to the Project.

I agree to the conditions of this agreement and certify all information provided regarding the construction and
employment activities for the Project as of 3p102020 (date).

FIVE South College Drive, Suite 201, Binghamton, NY 13905 607.584.9000 THEAGENCY-NY.COM 16-19
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APRuCHT. 159 Washington Holding LLC
mmmmmmm .'Josh Bishop

RIREss: PO Box 1554

o%  Binghamton WE NY » 13902 moe 7259721 :
Bl josh@jibpm.com

FUBTANES: 159 Washington St, Binghamion, NY 13001

TRE Mng Member

NATALIE C. ABBADESSA
Notary Public, State of New York
Registration #01AB6221930

Qualified In Broome Coun
Commission Expires 2 "

The foliowing orgenizetions must be soliclted in writing for the
vk | pirpose of mesting the requiremsnte this Agreement
cuménation of solicitstion MUST be providad to the Agsney *

The Builders Exchange of the Southem Tier, Inc. Southern T radss Counall
Ter, ter Builtling Ti
15 Belde;ﬂ. sr:"ot‘lw 1200 Clemens Centor Parkway
Binghamta oom- Elmira, NY 14801
{607 {607) 732-1287
Binghemion/Onsonta Buliding Tredes Councll
- Dodge Reports
Binghamton, r:;;asoq 830 Third Ave., 6t Floor rotesp
ralkens@iuoe158.org New York, NY 10022
{607) 7239503 support@construction,com
N . ) (877) 764-9556
622 West State Strest 0 Gounel
07 2228122
/E Bouth Colings Drive, Sulte 209, Binghamton, NY 13005 607.584.9000 TREADEREY-NY.COX i
-1
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NOR LOCAL LABOR UTILIZATION ;
REPORT mmm&mmmmnmmm

PROJECY ADORESS; oy SWE >

commct
AoORESS | om oE ., m
AL

o

i ! f {

PavinglLandeceping’ ! ! ]

CHEEY! IF CORSTRECTION IS COMPLETE IGERTFYTHATMBANAOOURATEAOOOUN, TING OF THE GONTRACTORS
MTAREWOHKIMATTHEPHNEGTSHE e

Company Representative Deto

/E South Collegs Drive, Sulte 201, Binghamion, NY 13905 607.584.0000 TREASEX CY-EY.00N "-1
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Short Environmental Assessment Form

Part 1 - Project Information
Lnstruetions for Completing

Compteceanmmhm.voumyusomvidem-dﬁﬁommmm.uonwmehmbeﬁmwiﬂbmededbyorwﬂﬂwﬁw
hdnmcy:mchwdiﬁmdpagunmymnmphmmmyim.

Part 1 - Project and Spensor Information

NameofActionorPront:

168 Weshinglon St Mixed Use Renovation

Project Location (describe, and attach & Jocation msp):

158 Weshington 8¢, Binghamon, NY 15804

Brief Description of Proposed Action:
wam.:oomum-mmu1mwmmmmmmmmmmm)m_mmmaumzrm.

Name of Applicant or Spogsor; Telephone: a7.725.672¢
150 Washington Holding LLC B-Mail: Josh@bom.com
Address: 1
PO Boix 1554
City/PO; State: Zip Code:
Bingharnton NY 13902
1. Tﬁmmmmwmmmmmwmpmmpmlmmm
administrative rule, or regulstion? NO | YES
Iqu,mchammﬁwdumipﬁmofﬁeimmwthempmedwﬁmmdmamﬁmmummﬂm m D
mybuﬂictedinthemunkipdnyandmoudmmz. I no, continue to question 2,
(2. Mhmﬁﬁmmﬁmnmﬁgmmwm&uﬁommymbw@vmw NO | YES
rYnlwws)mwm«memnmsmmmm D }
3. & Total scresge of the sits of the proposed sction? .18 acres
b. Total acresge to be physically disturbed? 0 acres
c.’!‘chlm@(uujeaaitamdmymmpuﬁn)owned
woonnuﬂadbyﬂunppﬁmorpmjmw .18 acres
4. Qw&nﬂhadmﬁumm.mudjﬁnhgamtﬁempoudwﬁom
&Uben [ Rural (non-agricuttur) [ industrial [Z) Commercial [J Residential (suburban)
DI Forest [ Agricutture [J Aquatic  [] Othe(Specify):
L [ Parktand B

SEAF 2019
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5. Is the proposed action,

& A permitted use under the zoning regulations?

L0 8

b.  Consistent with the adopted comprehensive plan?

|
6. Is the proposed sction consistent with the predominant charscter of the existing built or natural iandscape?

7. Isﬂlesiteofﬂwpmposedtﬁonlomdin. or does It adjoin, = state listed Critical Environmentsl Area?
If Yes, identity; —

REEESSE
SlERIfEEE

8 a Wﬂllhopmpuedwﬁonmhinlmbmnﬁalinuunlnmﬁubwemﬂﬂds?
b. Amwbncmmmﬁmmﬂmmnnblcnmmthemofmemsedwﬁm?

AmmpdsmwmmwﬁqclemMMemmnwﬁeﬁuafﬂwM
sction?

o

O
SnE

9. M&empﬂ@mmmwa&e&dﬁe%wm&mm
lftbepmpoudwﬁmwlﬂexceequuimhems,ducdbededm features and technologies:

10. Will the proposed action connect to a0 udsﬂngpubﬁcfpﬂmwmrmpp!y?
If No, describe method for providing potable water:

0B O [FEO

11. Wﬂlthewnmedndmmmeﬁ:ﬁngwmewmuﬁliﬁes?
IfNo.duuibemedwdforprwidingmmman

N 8 B

b, Is the project sits, or ‘anofit,loutedlnoudjmtnanmdaimndumiﬁvaﬁr
trdlmlogmﬁ?m c:'aig'e N;’ném Historic Preservation Office (SHPO) archseological site inventory?

13. a Doenmyporﬂonofﬂwﬁuoﬂbepmpoudlcﬁon, orlmdnqlotnhgrhepmpowdacﬂm.nomjn
wetlands moﬂwmbndjummdmdbynfedwd,mwloahgmcy?

b. Would the proposed action physically alter, or eacroech into, eny existing wetlend or waterbody?
If Yes, identify the wetland or waterbody and extent of alterations In square feet or sores:

NEE B 0OF O s
U0 O =g
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[17. Identify the typica) habitat types that ocour on, or are Tikely 1o be found on the project sfte. Chock all that apply:
Cishoreline [ Forest O] Agricultursl/grassiands 03 Early mid-successional
OiWetland ) Urban [ Suburban

18, Donﬂnﬁuofﬂ:epmpmedlcﬁmcominwspecia of enimal, or ssocinted habitats, listed by the State or
Feduﬂmvmuuuﬂuwmmdw

%o

16. Is the project site locared in the 100-year flood pian?

8 O[s

7]
NO

Ilt?Y Will the proposed action create storm water discharge, either from Ppoint or non-point sources?
es,

a Wil slorm water discharges flow to udjscent properties?
b, Mﬂmmdmhwwmﬂmwnwymsym(mﬂwmﬁmﬂ
If Yes, briefly describe:

OoEE"
OookE o

18. mmmwmmwmwmmﬂummammmwofm
oroﬂuliqﬁds(e.&.mﬂmmd.wmhsomdm}?
Iqu,axphindlepupouudﬁuofﬂuimpomm

K

19. }mundmoﬂhepopoudwﬁmmmidhiﬁngmybunmwmofmwﬁwmdondnﬁdm
management facility?
If Yes, describe;

L O

L —
mmm:mofhwwmumwmmbmmetubjm of remediation (ongoing or
completed) for hazardous waste?

If Yes, describe:

1CERTIFY THAT THE INFORMATION FROVIDED ABOVE IS TRUE AND ACCURATE TO THE BEST OF

MY KNOWLEDGE

Applicant/sponsos/name: 150 Washingion Molding LLC Date: 12/18/2019

Signature: —9:'5/) Title: Mng Momber

| O s

|_PRINT FORM |
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NOTES:

1. NEW STORE FRONT FRAMING, GLAZING AMD APARTMENT
ENTRANCE DOOR WILL BE PLAGED ON THE RIGHT BIDE OF THE
LEFT DISPLAY WINDOW

2 ALLEXISTING WINDOW TYPES AND SHAPES WILL BE MAINTAINED,
THE GLAZING WILL BE REPLACED WITH NEW ENERGY EFFICIENT
QLAZING,

[ ——
] m] a (] a m] m] [m] [m} a a o
m] [m] jul m] ] [m} m] u] [m] m] a u]
—
a 0 a =]
[m] ] [m] a
m
Fine Fumiture

ELLIS BROTHERS & JOSEPH

Crental Rugs

EXTERIOR ELEVATION FRONT

UF

STREET

'BNGWA FON, NY 13901

WASHINGTON STREET
APARTMENTS

FRONT ‘
|
81

ELEVATIONS,

/2020

SCALE:

18 =14

DRAWING:
E1

SHEET:




MIEW 1 (4]
(EXISTING BUILDINGS NOT SHOWN}

MEW 244}
{EXISTING BUILDINGS NOT SHOWN)

NEW ROOF ACGESS |
{HIODEN BY BULDING) |

COURT STREET
STREET VIEW

VIEWS 3R 4[4
{EXSTING BUILDINGS NOT SHOWN)

TYPICA NEWSINDOW
JELD-WEN BLACK PAINTED CLAD WOOD
[DOUBLE HUNG WINDCW WNATURAL
INTERIOR AN{: SCREEN

[ — i

APARTMENTS

| WASHINGTON STREET

‘ ELEVATIONS, STREET VIEWS ‘

DATE:

1122020

SOLARTUBE

SCALE:

NTS

DRAWING:

E4

SHEET:

10
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C2DISPLAY
225QFT

C2BARLOUNGE
1477 50FT

C1 DISPLAY
2esarr

C1RETAL
16783T FT

814 RESIDENTIAL LOBBY
2250 FT

FLOOR PLAN. FIRST FLOOR ~

NOTES:

1. THE NEW DOOR ENTRY LANDING SHALL BE FLAT. THE
THRESHOLD SHALL BE 1/2° OR LESS. THE SLOPE TO THE NEW
LANDING SHALL BE 1:12 OR FLATTER.

2 GLASS DISPLAY PANEL SHALL BE REPLACED WITH STOREFRONT
FRAMING. DESIGN AND PLACEMENT TO BE PROVIDED BY
OTHERS. MABOXES SHALL BE LOCATED IN THIS AREA.

2

.

L

&
D

&g

= w

S55Ez

= E2s

[N

mmmm

I =

nwAuAn

=

[+ 4

S

S

—)

[

%

o

w

=

]

o

o

S

S

—

w

11212020

SCALE:

6=

DRAWING:
P2

SHEET:

_!s
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NOTES;
1. SEE 5CHEDULE SHEET FOR CALLOUTS.
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SHINGTON STREET
APARTMENTS
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NOTES:
1. SEE SGHEDULE SHEET FOR CALLOUTS,
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5TH FLOOR

NOTES:

1. DECK SHALL BE PLACED LEVEL. ELEVATION SHALL BE ADJUSTED
TO FOLLOW THE ROOF SLOPE WITH STAIRS MEETING THE
FOLLOWIG CRITERIA: RISER 7" (MAX], TREAD ({1 (MIN), WIDTH
42" (MIN), RAIL 3438', GUARDS 42" (MIN)

2 ALLWALKWAYS SHALL BE 36" (MIN).

n
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|

FLOOR PLAN, ROOFTOP —‘

800;

r ’
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108 8780 BOOARAEME: oo |
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DATE:

17212020
SCALE:
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DRAWING:
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SHEET:
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MARCHUSKA
COMPANIES

MARCHUSKA BROTHERS CONSTRUCTION, LLC
MARCHUSKA GLASS, LLC
MARCHUSKA DEVELOPMENT, LLC -
WALLACE DEVELOPMENTCO., LLC
MARCHUSKA, LLC
1435-1439 MARCHUSKA, LLC
TIOGA LEARNING PROPERTIES, LLC
MARCHUSKA PRODUCTIONS, LLC

408 COMMERCE ROAD
VESTAL, NY 13850

607-786-3762 voice
607-786-0064 facsimile
www.marchuskabrothers.com

Bernard J. Marchuska
Member

Justin A. Marchuska, 11
Member

February 21, 2020

Stacey Duncan, Executive Director
The Agency

Five South College Drive

Suite 201

Binghamton, NY 13905

Via USPS & email: INFO@THEAGENCY-NY.COM

RE: Project 1435-1439 Marchuska, LLC

(408 Commerce Road) #03011908a

Dear Ms. Duncan:

Our firm has decided to locate our main headquarters at 408 Commerce
Road, Vestal, NY in lieu of locating at 1405 East Main Street in Endicott,
NY. At this time 1435-1439 Marchuska, LLC is requesting an additional
$35,920.00 Sales Tax Exemption Benefit on purchases of $449,000.00.

This request is due to extensive HVAC, electrical, and concrete floor
replacements, which were not initially slated for such large-scale
replacement.

This unforeseeable expense is primarily due to the poor condition of the
existing infrastructure of the facility, specifically the following:

1.

The existing roof deck needed to be replaced in entirety due to
extensive deterioration of roof panels. This included adding
appropriate insulation to meet energy code and new roof
membrane.

The concrete floor, including deck needed to be replaced in entirety
between floors due to extensive cracking. This included the floor
deck replacement.

The water and sewer service had to be replaced in entirety due to
the condition of the existing sewer.

The exterior wall purlins in most areas were deteriorated badly,
requiring our firm to reframe all exterior walls, including new

exterior finishes.

The existing concrete floor in the lower level was poured at multiple
levels, requiringa complete replacement to have a flat sound floor.
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6. The existing HVAC could not be reused due to existing conditions and a complete
replacement for all spaces was required.

7. The existing electrical service was in disrepair and did not have the capacity to
accommodate our proposed use. Additionally, a new electrical service from the utility
pole was needed to accommodate the increased capacity.

8. A sprinkler system needed to be added due to Vestal Code review, throughout the
entire building.

Thank you in advance for your consideration of this requested increase.
Should you have any questions, please feel free to contact me directly at 607-343-3232.
Very Truly Yours,

1435-1439 MARCHUSKA, LLC

v

L']'u'-stin A. Marchuska, 11
Member

cc: File

Page | 2
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BROOME COUNTY
INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY

UNIFORM TAX EXEMPTION POLICY

AMENDED NOVEMBER 13, 2019
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UNIFORM TAX EXEMPTION POLICY

The following Uniform Tax Exemption Policy will apply to all installment sales and lease
agreements in which the Broome County Industrial Development Agency (BCIDA) holds nominal
title to real and personal property on behalf of its clients.

A.

MORTGAGE RECORDING TAX (1%)

- BCIDA eligible projects are exempted from the payment of all mortgage recording

taxes.

. Actual mortgage recording tax savings must be reported to the BCIDA at year's end in

compliance with Chapter 692 of General Municipal Laws of NYS as amended.

SALES TAX (8%)

. BCIDA provides full sales tax exemption during initial construction and equipping of

the subject facility only. No operating (on-going) sales tax exemptions are permitted
by this policy.

. All sales tax exemption agreements will have an expiration date of one (1) year from

date of issuance. Extension of expiration dates must be approved by the Board of
Directors.

. Actual or estimated sales tax savings must be reported to the BCIDA at year's end in

compliance with Chapter 692 of the General Municipal Laws of NYS as amended.

REAL PROPERTY TAX/Pavments-in-lieu-of-Taxes (PILOT)
1. New Construction

a Industrial projects (manufacturing, assembly, R & D, processing, distribution,
warehousing, etc.) consisting of new construction, will receive the following
tax abatement: years 1-5, 75%; years 6- 10, 50%; years 11-15, 25%.

b. Commercial projects (wholesale, office, insurance, etc.) consisting of new
construction will receive the following tax abatement: years 1-5, 50% and
years 6-10, 25%.

¢ Retail projects will be reviewed on a case-by-case basis and must comply with
The Agency’s Retail Tax Abatement Policy.
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Broome County Industrial Development Agency
Uniform Tax Exemption Policy

Page 2

S.

Purchase of Existing Facilities

a

Industrial projects consisting of the purchase of an existing facility will have
taxes frozen at the level in place at the time of purchase for 5 years. In the
event that the existing facility is tax-exempt at the time of purchase, taxes shall
be frozen at the level that would have existed but for the existing tax-
exemption. In years 6-10, any tax increase over the frozen level will be
abated by 50% and in years 11-15, 25%.

Commercial projects consisting of the purchase of an existing facility will
have taxes frozen at the level in place at the time of purchase for 3-yearsfor 3
years. In the event that the existing facility is tax-exempt at the time of
purchase, taxes shall be frozen at the level that would have existed but for the
existing tax-exemption. In years 4 and 5, any tax increase over the frozen
level will be abated by 50% and in years 6-10, 25%.

Retail projects will be reviewed on a case-by-case basis and must comply
with The Agency’s Retail Tax Abatement Policy.

Improvemen Existing Facili reviousl

Any project, industrial or commercial, which consists of improving a
previously owned facility, will have taxes frozen at the level in place prior to
improvements for 3 years. In years 4 & 5, any tax increase over the frozen
level will be abated by 50% and in years 6-10, 25%.

Retail projects will be reviewed on a case-by-case basis and must comply
with The Agency’s Retail Tax Abatement Policy.

Faciliti

In any lease transaction (new construction, existing building, etc.), industrial
or commerecial, the policies stated in Sections 1,2, and 3 will apply so long as
the tax abatement benefits are passed on to the tenant/occupant. Both the
beneficial owner and the tenant/occupant must certify in writing that all tax
advantages provided by the IDA are accruing to the benefit of the
tenant/occupant.

Retail projects will be reviewed on a case-by-case basis and must comply
with The Agency’s Retail Tax Abatement Policy.

Actual real property tax savings must be reported to the BCIDA at year’s end in
compliance with the NYS General Municipal Laws, Article 18-A, Title 1, Section
874 as amended.
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D. REMITTANCE OF PAYMENTS IN LIEU OF TAXES

All payments-in-lieu-of-taxes are to be remitted to the affected taxing authority as if
they were regular tax payments, unless otherwise determined by mutual agreement.

E. RECAPTURE OF BENEFITS

1. The Broome County Industrial Development Agency reserves the right to recapture
benefits provided through the abatement of real property taxes in cases in which a
company’s performance is substantially different than anticipated, as defined
below:

a Sale or closure of facility and departure of company from Broome County;

b. Significant change in the use of the facility and/or business activities of the
company, and,

c¢. Significant employment reductions not reflective of the company’s normal
business cycle and/or local and national economic conditions.

In cases deemed to meet one or more of the above conditions, the following recapture

schedule will apply:
Accumulative Amount
Period Of Recapture

Within 3 Years 100%
Within 5 Years 85%
Within 10 Years 75%
Within 15 Years 50 %
After 20Years 25%

2. The time period above is from the effective date of the PILOT agreement.
Imposition of this recapture policy is at the sole discretion of the BCIDA and will
be considered on a case-by-case basis.
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F. EXCEPTIONS TO REAL PROPERTY TAX (PILOT) POLICIES (“DEVIATED

PILOTS”)

1. The Broome County Industrial Development Agency reserves the right to deviate
from this policy if it is determined that a project will provide a major economic or
employment impact to the County. This exception will require the written approval
of the Chief Elected Official of the municipality in which the project is located.

2. For locations where a PILOT Policy is already in place, these policies will not
apply. However, these locations do have the option of adopting these guidelines
and are encouraged to do so.

3. “Spec” buildings and multi-use facilities will be considered on a case-by-case basis.

4. An exception to this policy will apply when a project is located in a “Targeted
Area” (1) and consists of the purchase and renovation of a vacant facility or site.
In those cases, a tax freeze will apply for 7 years for industrial projects with 50%
abatement through year 10, and 25% abatement in years 11-15. Commercial
projects will receive tax freeze for 5 years, with 50 % abatement through year 10.

5. Applications that seek a deviation from the BCIDA’s Uniform Tax Exemption
Policy will only be advanced to the Board of Directors when the following
requirements have been met:

a The applicant has consulted with BCIDA staff and provided an overview of the
project seeking benefits;

b. The applicant has met with the assessing unit serving the municipality and
developed a PILOT schedule;

c. The applicant has secured approval from the Chief Elected Officer of the
municipality in which the project is located.

When all of these requirements have been met and upon completion of an Application for Benefits,
BCIDA staff will advance an application for consideration to the Board of Directors.

(1) The Broome County Industrial Development Agency Board of Directors reserves the right
to designate certain areas as “Target Zones”. A Target Zone is an area deemed to be blighted
and/or an area with high potential to support economic activity beneficial to the residents of
Broome County.

G. ENVIRONMENTAL AND ENERGY EFFICIENCY PROVISIONS

To the extent possible, practicable and economically feasible, the project must utilize resource conservation,
energy efficiency, green technologies, and alternative and renewable energy measures.
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BROOME COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY
SCHEDULE OF UNIFORM REAL PROPERTY TAX EXEMPTION POLICY

Purchase of Existing Facility Improve/Expand of Existing
New Construction Abatement Abatement Facility Abatement
Industrial Commercial Industrial Commercial Industrial Commercial
Years
1 75% 50% Frozen (1) Frozen (1) Frozen (3) Frozen (3)
2 75% 50% Frozen Frozen Frozen Frozen
3 75% 50% Frozen Frozen Frozen Frozen
4 75% 50% Frozen 50% (2) 50% (2) 50% (2)
5 75% 50% Frozen 50% 50% 50%
6 50% 25% 50% (2) 25% (2) 25% (2) 25%
7 50% 25% 50% 25% 25% 25%
8 50% 25% 50% 25% 25% 25%
9 50% 25% 50% 25% 25% 25%
10 50% 25% 50% 25% 25% 25%
11 25% 0% 25% (2) 0% 0% 0%
12 25% 0% 25% 0% 0% 0%
13 25% 0% 25% 0% 0% 0%
14 25% 0% 25% 0% 0% 0%
15 25% 0% 25% 0% 0% 0%

(1) Frozen at pre-purchase levels
(2) Percent of increase over frozen level
(3) Frozen at pre-improvement levels
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Execution Copy

FIRST AMENDATORY AGREEMENT
TO THE
REGULATORY AGREEMENT
FOR THE
CENTURY SUNRISE APARTMENTS PROJECT

BY AND AMONG
NEW YORK STATE HOUSING FINANCE AGENCY,
NEW YORK STATE DIVISION OF HOUSING AND COMMUNITY RENEWAL,
CENTURY SUNRISE REDEVELOPMENT LLC
AND
BROOME COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY

New York State Housing Finance Agency Multi Family Housing
Affordable Housing Revenue Bond Program
Housing Trust Fund Corporation L.oan
Low Income Housing Tax Credits and New York State Low Income Housing Tux Credits

Dated as of March , 2020

Record and Refurn To:

Jay M. Ticker, Esq.

New York State Housing Finance Agency
- 641 Lexington Avenue

New York, NY 10022

Telephone; 212-872-0365

(Jay: Ticker@nyshcr.org)
Premises:  135-139 Baldwin Street
Village of Johnson City
Broome County
Section: 143.73
Block: 1
Lot: 1

FASPECPRONLIHTCAProjectsM¥\Century Sunrise akn Johnson City_2377\RA Amendment\Contury First Amend Reg Agmt-HS-JT-2020-3-5,v6.docx
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FIRST AMENDATORY AGREEMENT
TO THE
REGULATORY AGREEMENT
FOR THE
CENTURY SUNRISE APARTMENTS PROJECT

This First Amendatory Agreement (“Amendment”) is entered into as of this day of March,
2020, by and among CENTURY SUNRISE REDEVELOPMENT LLC (“Owner”), a New York limited
liability company, with an address at c/o Regan Development Corporation, 1055 Saw Mill River Road,
Suite 204, Ardsley, New York 10502, BROOME COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT
AGENCY (“IDA”), a public benefit corporation of the Siate of New York having an office located at 60
Hawley Street, 5® Floor, Binghamton, New York 13901, the NEW YORK STATE HOUSING
FINANCE AGENCY (“Agency™), a corporate governmental agency established pursuant to Article IIT of
the PHFL, constituting a public benefit corporation, having its principal place of business at 641 Lexington
Avenue, New York, New York 10022 and the NEW YORK STATE DIVISION OF HOUSING AND
COMMUNITY RENEWAL, having an office at 38-40 State Street, Albany, New York 12207,

RECITALS:

WHEREAS, as of March 16, 2017, the parties entered into a certain Regulatory Agreement
("Regulatory Agreement”) with respect to certain real property located in the City Village of Johnson
City, Broome County, New York, as more particularly described in Schedule A attached hereto
(“Premises™), consisting of two (2) existing residential buildings renovated into mixed-use rental housing
containing a total of one hundred five (105) residential rental units of housing, (including one two-
bedroom superintendent’s unit) all being known as Century Sunrise Apartments; (the “Project”) and

WHEREAS, 93 of the Project’s revenue units are set aside for households in which incomes are
at or below 60% of the Area Median Income for the Binghamton, NY MSA (“AMI™), adjusted for family
size (¢ach a “60% AMI Unit”), and the remaining 11 units are set aside for households in which incomes
are at or below 90% of the AML. In addition, 26 units of the 60% AMI Units in the Project are reserved
for individuals with intellectual and developmental disabilities (the “Supportive Units*); and

WHEREAS, the Regulatory Agreement was recorded on March 27, 2017 as Instrument Number
201700007737, in Book D2519 at Page 414, in the Office of the Broome County Clerk (“County Clerk’s

Office™); and

WHEREAS, the Owner and Agency desire to amend the Regulatory Agreement in accordance
with federal low-income housing tax credit (“LIHTC”) program requirements as applicable.to the Project;

NOW THEREFORE, the parties hereto agree as follows:

1. The list of Appendices and Exhibits at the end of the Table of Contents is hereby
amended to delete therefrom reference to Schedule B — Distribution of SLIHC Units (and
such Schedule B is hereby deleted), and to be deemed to include therein, immediately
after the listing of Schedule A — Legal Description of the Premises, reference to the
Schedule B-1 - Location of Low Income Units and Applicable Fraction Specification -

. Low Income Housing Tax Credit Program and Schedule B-2 - Location of Low Income
Units and Applicable Fraction Specification — New York State Low Income Housing
Credit Program, which Schedules B-1 and B-2 are both attached hereto and made part of
the Regulatory Agreement as hereby amended.

FASPECPRONLTHTCAProjects\%4\Century Sunrise aka Johnson City_2377RA Amendment\Century Firet Amend Reg Agart-HS-11-2020-3-5.v6.doc
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Exhibit D — Schedule of Amenities and Services is hereby deleted and replaced by the
Exhibit D — Schedule of Amenities and Services attached hereto,

The fourth WHEREAS clause in the Recitals is hereby deleted and replaced with the
following;

WHEREAS, not less than 93 (not less than 89.42%) of the 104 revenue-
generating units in the Project are set aside for rental occupancy by households with
qualifying incomes at or below 60% of the Area Median Income (“*AMI”) (as further
defined herein) for (he Binghamion, NY MSA (“AMI™), adjusted for family size and, of
these units, twenty-six (26) shall be reserved for individuals with intellectual and
developmental disabilities (the “Supportive Units™); and

The reference to Schedule B in the fifth WHEREAS clause in the Recitals is hereby
deleted and replaced by reference to Schedule B-2.

Notwillistandiug anything lo (he conbtaty thal inay be found in the Regulatory
Agreement, Section 3.2(d)(1) of the Regulatory Agreement is hereby deleted, and such
~ provision of the Regulatory Agreement is amended to read as follows:

(d) During the Extended Use Period:

(1) except as provided in Section 4.2 of this Agreement, the Low Income Units,
constituting in no event less than 93 of the 104 revenue-generating units in the Project,
i.e., not less than 89.42% of the revenue-generating residential units in the Project, shall
be occupied or available for occupancy by qualified families or individuals earning not
more than 60% of the AMI, as adjusted for family size;

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary that may be found in the Regulatory
Agreement, Section 3.2(d)(6) of the Regulatory Agreement is hereby deleted, and such
provision of the Regulatory Agreement is amended to read as follows: '

(6) the “applicable fraction,” as defined in §42(c)(1) of the Code, is hereby specified
with respect to each building in Project, as set forth in Schedule B-1, attached hereto.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary that may be found in the Regulatory Agreement,
the first paragraph of Section 4.2(a) of the Regulatory Agreement is hereby deleted, and
such provision of the Regulatory Agreement is amended to read as follows:

(a) Continuously during the term of this Agreement: (i) not less than 93 of the total of
104 revenue-generating residential units in the Project, i.e., not less than 89.42% of the
revenue-generating residential units in the Project, shall be occupied and, once having
been so occupied, held available for occupancy by Individuals of Low Income; and (ii) as
provided in Section 3.3(a)(1) hereof, all 104 of the revenue-generating residential units in
the Project (i.e., the 93 units referred to in (i) of this paragraph, and the remaining 11
units in the Project) shall be occupied or, once having been so occupied, held for
occupancy by Individuals of Low Income having incomes of no more than 90% of AMI
(collectively, (i) and (ii), the “Low Income Units™). In addition, 26 units of the 93 units

FASPECPRONLIHTC\Projestsv2a\Century Sunrise aka Johnson City, 2377\RA AmerdmentiCentury First Amend Reg Agmt-HS-JT-2020-3-5.v6.doex
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available for occupancy by qualified families or individuals earning not more than 60%
of the AMI are to be reserved as Supportive Units,

8. All capitalized terms used in this Amendment and not otherwise defined herein shall have
the meaning assigned to them in the Regulatory Agreement; and

9. Except as expressly amended herein, all terms, conditions and provisions of the
Regulalory Agreement remain in full force and effect.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this Amendment to be executed and
delivered by their respective duly authorized representatives, as of the day and year first written above.

AGENCY:
Approved by Counsel NEW YORK STATE HOUSING FINANCE AGENCY
to the Agency A/ ,_'
\&)ﬂ\ N\ M By:
Jay\M. Ticker " > Aicole Ferreira
Associatd Cou Senior Vice President
OWNER:

CENTURY SUNRISE REDEVELOPMENT LLC,
a New York limited liability company

By:  Century Sunrise Redevelopment Manager LLC,

its Managing Member
By:  Century Sunrise Rédevelopment Associates
LLC, its Manager
By:
Lawrence Regan
Member
IDA:
BROOME COUNTY INDUSTRIAL
DEVELOPMENT FUND CORPORATION
By:
Stacey Duncan
Executive Director
DHCR:

NEW YOR STATE DIVISION OF HOUSING

AND (WBWAL

By: - Zzp
Xicole Ferreira
Deputy Commissioner
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STATE OF NEW YORK )
’ ) ss.:

COUNTY OF NEW YORK )

On the i&_ day of March in the year 2020, before me, the undersigned, a Notary Public in and
for said state, personally appeared Nicole Ferreira personally known to me or proved to me on the basis
of satisfactory evidence to be the individual whose name is subscribed to the within instrument and
acknowledged to me that she executed the same in her capacity, and that by her signature on the instrument,
the individual, or the person on behalf of which the indjvidual atted, executed the instrument,

Uil
Nofary Public
Commission expires:

HERBERT L. SUSSMAN
Notery Mublic, Stato of Now York
. No, 31-4015952
Qualified in New York County (
Commission Expires November 30, 2021
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STATE OF NEW YORK )
) ss.:
COUNTY OF WESTCHESTER )

On the day of March in the year 2020, before me, the undersigned, a Notary Public in and
for said state, personally appeared Lawrence Regan personally known to me or proved to me on the basis
of satisfactory evidence to be the individual whose name is subscribed to the within instrument and
acknowledged to me that he executed the same in his capacity, and that by his signature on the instrument,
the individual, or the person on behalf of which the individual acted, executed the instrument.

. Notary Public -
Commission expires:
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STATE OF NEW YORK )
) ss.:
COUNTY OF BROOME )

On the day of March in the year 2020, before me, the undersigned, a Notary Public in and
for said state, personally appeared Stacey Duncan personally known to me or proved to me on the basis of
satisfactory evidence to be the individual whose name is subscribed to the within instrument and
acknowledged to me that she executed the same in her capacity, and that by her signature on the instrument,
the individual, or the person on behalf of which the individual acted, executed the instrument.

Notary Public
Commission expires:
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STATE OF NEW YORK - )
) ss.:

COUNTY OFNEW YORK )

On thesm_ day of March in the year 2020, before me, the undersigned, a Notary Public in and
for said state, personally appeared Nicole Ferreira personally known to me or proved to me on the basis
of satisfactory evidence to be the individual whose name is subscribed to the within instrument and
acknowledged to me that she executed the same in her capacity, and that byher signature on the instrument,
the individual, or the person on behalf of which the indjvfdyal acted €xecuted the instrument.

/

Notagy Public
Commission expires:

HERBERT L. SUSSMAN -
- Notary Public, State of New York
. No. 31-4915652
Qualified in New York County 7
Commission Expires November 30, 20_{
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SCHEDULE A

LEGAL DESCRIPTION

(Attached)
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. Schedule A
DESCRIPTION QF PREMISES

FEE PARCEL (SECTION 143.73, BLOCK 1, LOT 1)

ALL that tract or parcel of land situate in the Village of Johnson City, County of Broome, and State of
New York, bounded and described as follows:

BEGINNING at a point on the nominal centerline of Wiliow Street, said point standing at the intersection
of the nominal centerline of Willow Street with the southerly boundary of the Erie-Lackawanna Railroad
(now or formerly) (formerly New York Lackawanna & Western Railway); said point of beginning being
further described as standing therein distant South 03 degrees 14' 31" West 421.06 feet, South 08 degrees
31" 53" West 68.98 feet and South §8 degrees 52' 49" Bast 28.37 foet ag measured respectively along the
nominal westerly highway boundary of Willow Sireet. and the southerly boundary of the Erje-
Lackawanna Railroad from a point standing at the intersection of the nominal westorly highway boundary
of Willow Strest with the nominat southerly highway boundary or Corliss Avenue;

THENCE South 05 degrees 07' 39" West 129.20 feet along the nominal centerline of Willow Street to a
point standing on the northerly boundary of the Islamic Organization of the Southern Tier (now or
formerly); )

THENCE North 88 degrees 45' 00" West 371.23 feet elong the northerly boundary of the Islamic
Orgavization of the Southern ‘Lier to an iron rod standing on the northerly boundary of Mahir Eisa and
Sofia Adam (now or formerly);

THENCE North §8 degrecs 59' 24" Wost 446,56 fect along the northerly boundary of Mahir Eisa and
Sofia Adam, the northerly boundary of Valerie A. Vergona (now or formerly), the northerly boundary of
Ella Mae Koffel and Judith A, Lyon (now or formerly), the northerly boundary of Orlando A. Pessagno
and Elaine IT. Pessuguo (now or formerly), the northerly boundary of Ronald E, Taylor and Lorraine C,
Taylor (now or formerly), the northerly boundary of M. Nasreen Battla (now or formerly) and then along
the northerly boundary of The Johnson City Alliance Church (now or formerly) to an iron rod standing
on the nominal easterly highway boundary of Baldwin Street; : .

THENCE North 03 degrees 27' 54" East 129.00 feet along the nominal easterly highway boundary of
Baldwin Street to an iron road standing on the southerly boundary of the Erie-Lackawanna Railroad;

THENCE South 88 degrees 52' 49" East 821.53 feet along the southerly boundary of the Erie-
Lackawanna Railroad to the point and place of BEGINNING,

LEASE PARCEL A

All that tract or parcel of land situate in the Village of Johnson City, County of Broome and State of New
York, bounded and described as follows:

as described in a Bargain and Sale Deed dated December 21, 2016 and filed in the Broome County Clerk's
Office in Liber 2512 of Deeds at Page 290 (Instrument Number 201600032904); the northerly boundary

Schedule to Regulatory Agreement
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of Century Sunrise Redevelopment LLC being further described as the southerly boundary of the Erje -
Lackawanna Railroad (Now or Formerly) (formerly New York Lackawanna & Western Railway);

THENCE North 03°27'54" East 35.58 feet along the nominal easterly highway boundary of Baldwin
Street to a point;

THENCE South 88°52'49" East 796.33 feet to 8 point standing on the nominal westerly highway
boundary of Willow Street;

THENCE South 08°31'53" West 35.85 [eet along the nominal westerly highway boundary of Willow
Street to an iron rod standing on the northerly boundary of Century Sunrise Redevelopment 1.1.C;

THENCE North 88°52'49" West 793.16 feet along the northerly boundary of Century Sunrise
Redevelopment LLC to the point and place of BEGINNING.

LEASE PARCEL B

All that tract or parcel of land situate in the Village of Johnson City, County of Broome and State of New
York, bounded and described as follows:

BEGINNING at a point on the nominal westerly highway boundary of Baldwin Street, said point standing
at the intersection of the nominal westerly highway boundary of Baldwin Street with (he southerly
boundary of Wayne A. Jones (d/b/a WAJ Development Company) MNow or Formerly), as described in a
Warranty Deed dated December 20, 2013 and filed in the Broome County Clerk's Office in Liber 2421
of Decds at Page 351; (e southerly boundary of Wayne A. Jones {d/b/a. WAJ Development Company)
being further described as the northerly boundary of the Erie - Lackawanna Railroad (Now or Formerly)
(formerly New York Lackawanna & Western Railway); :

THENCE South 03°07'00" West 40.62 feet along the nominal westerly highway boundary of Baldwin
Street to a point; .

THENCE North 88°56'53" West 729.88 feet to a point;

THENCE Notth 01°07'13" East 40,78 feetto a point standing on the southerly boundary of United Health
Services, Inc. (Reputed Owner);

THENCE South 88°56'00" East 731.290 feet along the southerly boundary of lands reputedly owned by

Schedule to Regulatory Agreement
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SCHEDULE B-1

LOCATION OF LOW INCOME UNITS
AND APPLICABLE FRACTION SPECIFICATION

LOW INCOME HOUSING TAX CREDIT PROGRAM

(Attached)
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SCHEDULE B-1

Location of Low Income Unlts
© and
Applicable Fraction Specification
Low Income Housing Tax Credit Program
Century Sunrise Apartments
Johnson City, New York

Total Lowlincome Total Sq. Low Income Li% Based LI% Based Applicable

Bidg# : Address Units Units Ft. Sq. Ft. onUnits on8q. Ft Fraction
1 135-139 Baldwin Street 38 36 32,634 31,092 84.74% 95.57% 94.74%
2 135-139 Baldwin Street 66 57 52,584 45,555 86.36% 86.63% 86.36%

104 93 Project Wide Applicable Fraction 89.42%
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SCHEDULE B-2

LOCATION OF LOW INCOME UNITS
AND APPLICABLE FRACTION SPECIFICATION
NEW YORK STATE LOW INCOME HOUSING TAX CREDIT PROGRAM

(Attached
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SCHEDULE B-2

Location of Low Income Units
and
Applicable Fraction Specification
New York State Low Income Housing Credit Program
Century Sunrise Apartments
Johnson City, New York

Total LowIncome Total Sq. “Low Income LI % Basad LI % Based Applicable

Bldg # Address Units U nits Ft. Sq. Ft. onUnits  onSq, Ft. Fraction
1 135-139 Baldwin Street a8 38 32,534 32534  100.00%  100.00%  100.00%
2 135-139 Baldwin Strest 66 66 52,584 52,584  100.00%  100.00%  100.00%

104 104 Project Wide Applicable Fraction 100.00%
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EXHIBIT D
SCHEDULE OF AMENITIES AND SERVICES

(Attached)
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Project: Century Suirisé Redevelopment

1) The projéct inclides commereial space, ¢ither financed by the Agency or included in the total

development cost of the projeot: XX . Yes No
2) Therewillbe 1 units reserved for resident managers, superintenidents and/or ¢émployees:
Unit # Usiit Type | Residential or Commiercial Revenue- or
 (IfKnown) Use Non-Revenue-Generating
‘Century 303 1BR Resideritial Non-Revenne

3) The Following services and aménities are available for a fee which is NOT included in the
monthly base rent for all tenants (both affordable and inarket rate): '

Parking spaces:
___I;A;gspac&émg .nl
— . Indoar patkitg or garages only

$fhdiﬁ°m space(s) after one

1er5 .

~__ Storage space
Recieationial facilities/Comrunity center

Individual idilities: ,
X _ Electric X _Heat

. 2 Oas ) _ _ . X, AlC .

s Water forall units {buiilding provides HW Heat for 26 special needs unifs only)
_X._ Cableservies ‘

Laundry facilities:

Wiisher/Dryer hook-up

— Washer/Dryer in unit

X Laundry room
Structural or architectural features:

Bay windows - Den, in apariment
Balconies Vaulted ceilings -

—— Fireplages
“Other:

Other services and/or amenities for which a féewill be charged;
N/A. ' _

If applicable, the service package for senjot/congregatelassisted projects incndess
N/A ,

Certification: 1, Kenneth Regan, Managi Member of the Managing Member of Cen
Sunrise Redevelopment. L1.C _, Ovitier, hereby certify that the information contained herein is
accurate and correch

Signed: % Dated: 3/3/20

Title: _@ﬂ%{{mﬁu of MM
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BROOME COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY
CODE OF ETHICS

The members of the board (the "Board") of the Broome County Industrial Development
Agency (the "Agency"), a duly established public benefit corporation of the State of New York (the
"State"), along with the officers and staff of the Agency, shall comply with and adhere to the
provisions of this Code of Ethics ("Code") adopted pursuant to and in accordance Section 2824 ofthe
Public Authorities Law and Article 18 ofthe General Municipal Law ofthe State.

ARTICLE |
CONFLICTS OF INTEREST

A conflict of interest is a situation in which the financial, familial, or personal interests of a
director, officer or employee come into "actual" or "perceived" conflict with their duties and
responsibilities with the Agency. "Perceived" conflicts of interest are situations where there is the
appearance that a director, officer or employee can personally benefit from actions or
decisions made in their official capacity, or where a director, officer or employee may be
influenced to act in @ manner that does not represent the best interests of the Agency. The
perception of a conflict may occur if circumstances would suggest to a reasonable person that a
director, officer or employee may have a conflict. "Actual” conflicts of interest are situations where
a director, officer or employee can personally benefit from actions or decisions made in their official
capacity, or where a director, officer or employee is influenced to act in a manner that does not
represent the best interests of the Agency. Except for Prohibited Conflicts of interest as set
forth in Article V herein, Perceived and Actual conflicts of interest should be treated in the same

manner for purposes of disclosure under Article IV herein.

ARTICLE 1l
STANDARDS OF CONDUCT

Each director, officer, and employee of the Agency shail: (1) not accept other employment which will
impair his or her independence ofjudgment in the exercise of his or her official duties; (2) not accept
employment or engage in any business or professional activity which will require him or her to disclose
confidential information which he or she has gained by reason of his or her official position of
authority; (3) not disclose confidential information acquired by him or her in the course of his or her
official duties nor use such information to further his or her personal interests; (4) not use or
attempt to use his or her official position to secure unwarranted privileges or exemptions for himseif,
herself or others except that nothing herein shall prohibit any business or enterprise in which such
director, officer or employee may have a financial interest from obtaining financial assistance
provided that the Prohibited Conflicts of Interest provisions of Article V herein are not violated; (5)
not engage In any transaction as a representative or agent of Agency with any business entity in which
he or she has a direct or indirect financial interest that might reasonably tend to conflict with proper
discharge of his or her official duties, except that nothing herein shaill prohibit any business or
enterprise in which such director, officer or employee may have a financial interest from
obtaining financial assistance provided that the Prohibited Conflicts of Interest provisions of Article V
herein are not violated; (6) not, by his or her conduct, give reasonable basis for the impression that

any person can improperly influence
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him or her or unduly enjoy his or her favor in the performance of his or her official duties, or that he or
she is affected by the kinship, rank, position or influence of any party or person; (7) abstain from making
personal investments in enterprises which he or she has reason to believe may be directly involved in
decisions to be made by him or her or which will otherwise create substantial conflict between his or her
duty in the public interest and his or her private interest, except that nothing herein shall prohibit any
business or enterprise in which such director, officer or employee may have a financial interest
from obtaining financlal assistance provided that the Prohibited Conflicts of Interest provisions of
Article V herein are not violated; and (8) endeavor to pursue a course of conduct which will not raise
suspicion among the public that he or she is likely to be engaged in acts that are in violation of his or
her trust. Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, nothing shall prohibit any director, officer
or employee of the Agency from acquiring property adjacent to or otherwise proximate to the lands in
which the Agency has an ownership interest provided that such acquisition is not based upon the use
of confidential information obtained by such director, officer or employee of the Agency in his capacity
with the Agency as determined by such member after consultation with Chairman of the Agency and

Counset to the Agency.

ARTICLE il
GIFTS

Pursuant to and in accordance with Section 805-a of the General Municipal Law, no
director, officer or employee ofthe Agency shall directly or indirectly, solicit any gift, or accept or receive
any gift having a value of seventy-five dollars or more under circumstances in which it could reasonably
be inferred that the gift was intended to influence such individual, or could reasonably be expected
to influence such individual, in the performance of the individual’s official duties or was intended
as a reward for any official action on the individual's part. Inferences that gifts having a value of
less than seventy-five dollars can influence or reward directors, officers or employees ofthe Agency is

deemed to be unreasonable.

ARTICLE IV
PROCEDURES FOR DISCLOSURE

Except for Prohibited Conflicts of Interest as set forth in Article V below, all directors, officers or
employees ofthe Agency shall adhere to the following procedures:

1. Al Actual and Perceived conflicts of interest shall be disclosed in writing to the
Ethics Officer as soon as practicable after learning of the Actual or Perceived conflict of interest. The
written disclosure must (i) identify the matter before the Agency, (ii) identify the Standard of Conduct in
question and (iii) contain sufficient facts and circumstances in order to accurately convey the extent of
the director’s, officer’s or employee’s interest in such matter. In addition, in the event a director on the
board of the Agency has a conflict, he or she shall verbally disclose the conflict during a public
session of a board meeting at which the matter creating the confiict appears on the agenda. Such
verbal disclosure shall be recorded in the minutes ofthe meeting and be made part ofthe public record.
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2. The director, officer or employee with the conflict of interest shall refrain from
participating in discussions or decisions on the matter creating the conflict. In addition, in the
event a director on the board of the Agency has a conflict, he or she shall recuse him or herself
from any deliberations and abstain from voting on such matter creating the conflict,

3. The director, officer or employee with the conflict ofinterest shall refrain from
directly or indirectly attempting to influence the discussions, decisions, deliberations or vote on
the matter giving rise to such conflict.

ARTICLEV
PROHIBITED CONFLICTS OF INTEREST

General Municipal Law ("GML”) Article 18 regulates financial conflicts of interest of
directors, officers and employees of the Agency. Therefore, notwithstanding any other provision
contained in this Policy, financial conflicts of interest shall be governed solely by this Article V.

Prohibition: No director, officer or employee shall have a direct or indirect financial
interest in a contract with the Agency where such director, officer or employee has some form of
control over the contract ("Prohibited Interest”).

No Cure: Disclosure and recusal will not cure a Prohibited Interest. In order to avoid a
violation of a "Prohibited Interest" the contract may not be acted upon or the director, officer or

employee would have to resign.

Violations: Any director, officer or employee who is determined to have "willfully and
knowingly" violated the Prohibited Interest provisions of Article 18 of the GML may be found guilty
of a misdemeanor. In addition, the contract, if willfully entered into, may be determined “nuli, void

and wholly unenforceable"

Exceptions: Article 18 of the GML provides fifteen exceptions to the Prohibited Interest
provision. One of the more commonly claimed exceptions comes into play when the director, officer
or employees ("officials") interest in the contract is prohibited solely by reason of the official’s
employment with the entity that has the contract with the Agency. This exception applies
provided: (a) the official's compensation from the private employer is not contingent upon the
contract between the employer and the Agency and (b) the official’s duties for the private
employer do not directly involve the procurement, preparation or performance of any part of the
contract. [Note: This exception does not cover an Agency official who is a director, partner,
member, or shareholder of the private employer]. The second most commonly claimed exception is
where the official has an interest in a contract that was entered into with the Agency prior to the time
the official was elected or appointed as such director, officer or employee of the Agency. Provided,
however, this exception does not authorize the renewal ofany such contract.

Disclosure of Exception: Disclosure of Interest that falls within one of the Exceptions: The

official is required to publicly disclose the nature and extent of his or her prospective, existing or
subsequently acquired interest in any actual or proposed contract. The disclosure
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must be made in writing and must be placed, in its entirety, in the official record. The official
must recuse him or herself from participating in any discussion or action on the contract,

Notification of Potential Conflict due to a Financial Interest: Every director, officer or
employee shall immediately notify the Agency’s Ethics Officer of any potential conflict of
interest due to a direct or indirect financial interest in any matter coming before the Agency
where such director, officer or employee has the power or duty to negotiate, prepare, authorize or
approve the matter before the Agency. The Ethics Officer shall review the potential financial
conflict of interest pursuant to the provisions of Article 18 of the GML in consultation with

Agency counsel,

ARTICLE VI
PENALTIES

Any employee that fails to comply with this Policy may be subject to termination. In
addition, any director, officer or employee that fails to comply with this Policy may be penalized in

a manner provided for in law.

ARTICLE VI
ETHICS OFFICER

The Agency’s Board shall designate an officer, director or employee of the Agency to
serve as the Ethics Officer of the Agency. In the event of a vacancy, the Agency Board Chair shall
serve as the Ethics Officer until such time as the Agency Board appoints a successor.

The Ethics Officer shall report to the Governance Committee. The Ethics Officer shall
have the powers and duties set forth below, and such other powers and duties as may be

prescribed by the Board:

1 Advise in confidence each director, officer or employee of the Agency who seeks
guidance regarding ethical behavior.

2, Receive and record disclosures of conflicts of interest in the record of the Agency.

3. Receive and investigate complaints about possible violations of this Code of
Ethics, Dismiss complaints found to be without substance.

4, Prepare investigative reports of his or her findings to be submitted for action by
the Board.

5. Seek consultation and guidance from Agency Counsel.
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ARTICLE VI
WHISTLEBLOWER POLICY

In accordance with Title 12 of Article 9 of the Public Authorities Law, the Agency adopted
a Whistleblower Policy to afford certain protections to individuals who, in good faith, report violations
of the Agency’s Code of Ethics or other instances of potential wrongdoing within the Agency. This
Policy provides Agency directors, officers, and employees with a confidential means to report
credible allegations of misconduct, wrongdoing, or unethical behavior and to protect those
individuals, when acting in good faith, from personal or professional retaliation. The
Whistieblower Policy is available to all directors, officers, and employees ofthe Agency.

Approved and adopted this 20th day ofApril, 2016
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BROOME COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY
DEFENSE AND INDEMNIFICATION POLICY

The Broome County Industrial Development Agency (the Agency), shall indemnify all Directors of
the Board and each officer and employee thereof, in the performance of their duties, and to the
extent authorized by the Board, each other person authorized to act for the Agency or on its behalf,
to the full extent to which indemnification is permitted under the General Municipal Law of the

State of New York.
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BROOME COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY
WHISTLE-BLOWER POLICY

Every member of the Board of Directors (the “Board”) of the Broome County Industrial
Development Agency (The Agency) and all officers and employees thereof, in the performance
of their duties shall conduct themselves with honesty and integrity and observe the highest
standard of business and personal ethics set forth in the Code of Ethics of The Agency (the

G‘Code‘Q’)

Each member, officer or employee is responsible to report any violations of the Code
(whether suspected or known) to The Agency’s Executive Director. Reports of violations will be
kept confidential to the extent possible. No individual, regardless of their position with The
Agency, will be subject to any retaliation against someone who has reported a violation, shall be
subject to disciplinary action which may include termination of employment. Regardless, any
claim of retaliation will be taken and treated seriously and irrespective of the outcome of the
initial complaint, will be treated as a separate offense.

The Executive Director is responsible for immediately forwarding any claim to The
Agency’s counsel who shall investigate and handle the claim in a timely manner.

In accordance with Public Authorities Law Section 2857, no state or local authority shall
fire, discharge, demote, suspend, threaten, harass or discriminate against an employee because of
the employee’s role as a whistleblower, insofar as the actions taken by the employee are legal.

Approved and Adopted this 21* day of August, 2019
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BROOME COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY
COMPENSATION, REIMBURSEMENT AND ATTENDANCE POLICY

Pursuant to and in accordance with Sections 856 and Article 18a of the General Municipal Law of
the State of New York, the Directors of the Board of the Broome County Industrial
Development Agency (the "Board") shall serve without salary at the pleasure of the Legislature of
the County of Broome, New York (the "MUNICIPALITY") but may be reimbursed
for reasonable expenses incurred in the performance of Agency duties at the approval of

the Board.

The officers, employees and agents of the Agency shall serve at the pleasure of the Agency at such
compensation levels as may be approved by the Board from time to time and may
be reimbursed for reasonable expenses incurred in the performance of Agency duties at

the approval of the Board.

The Directors of the Board and officers of the Agency shall be available as required to perform
the operations of the Agency and as set forth within the By-Laws of the Agency, as may
be amended, restated or revised by the Board from time to time. Said Directors and officers of
the Agency shall put forth their best efforts to perform their respective duties as outlined in the By
laws of the Agency and any other directives of the Board relating to same.
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BROOME COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY
TRAVEL POLICY

Section 1. APPILICABILITY

This policy shall apply to every Director of the Board (the "Board") of the Broome
County Industrial Development Agency {the "Agency"} and all officers and employees thereof,

Section 2, APPROVAL of TRAVEL

All official travel for which a reimbursement will be sought must be approved by the Executive
Director prior to such travel. Provided, however, in the instance where the Executive Director will
seek reimbursement for official travel, such travel must be pre-authorized by the Chairman of the

Agency.
Section 3. PAYMENT of TRAVEL

The Agency will reimburse all reasonable expenses related to meals, travel and lodging that
were incurred by any director, officer or employee as a resuit of the performance of their official
duties. Al official travel shall be properly authorized, reported and reimbursed. Under no
circumstances shall expenses for personal travel be charged to, or temporarily funded by the Agency.
It is the traveler’s responsibility to report his or her travel expenses in a responsible and ethical

manner, in accordance with this policy.

Section 4. TRAVEL EXPENSES

Travelers may use their private vehicle for business purposes if it is less expensive than renting
a car, taking a taxi, or using alternative transportation, or if it saves time. The traveler will be
reimbursed at the maximum rate allowed by the Internal Revenue Service.

Meals will be reimbursed at actual expense or a per diem rate, whichever Is less. Lodging will
be reimbursed at actual expense up to certain daily rate caps established for various locations. The
applicability of such caps shall be determined on a case by case basis taking into consideration
availability of lodging and other extenuating circumstances,

Reimbursement for miscellaneous expenses shall be determined on a case by case basis.
Mileage rates, per diem aliowances and lodging caps will be established and from time to time
amended by the Treasurer, ‘All determinations made pursuant to this section shall be made by the
Treasurer. In the instance where such determinations regard the travel of the Treasurer, the Chairman

shall make such determinations.
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Authority Mission Statement and Performance Measurements

Local Public Authority Name: Broome County Industrial Development Agency

Fiscal Year: January 1, 2019 — December 31, 2019

Enabling Legislation: industrial development agencies (“IDAs”) are formed under Article 18-A of
New York State General Municipal Law, as public benefit corporations. IDAs were created to
actively promote, encourage, attract and develop job and recreational opportunities and
economically-sound commerce and industry in cities, towns, villages and counties throughout
New York State (the “State”). IDAs are empowered to provide financial assistance to private
entities through tax incentives in order to promote the economic welfare, prosperity and

recreational opportunities for residents of a municipality.

Mission Statement: The Broome County IDA is a catalyst, partner and investor that delivers
clear benefits including job opportunities, development sites and enhanced quality of life. The
BCIDA promotes and leverages all available resources and Broome County’s strengths to foster

economic growth and create prosperity in an ethical and transparent manner

Date Adopted: December 13, 2013

List of 2020 Performance Goals:

1.

6.
7.

Develop a joint strategy with the Chamber of Commerce to continue advancing the
Broome County...a good life™ campaign.

Work with local municipalities to address quality of life issues such as vibrant
downtowns and housing options.

Aggressively seek out community and economic development opportunities in target
communities (Binghamton, Endicott and Johnson City urban cores); and work with
Broome County and local municipalities to bring about transformation of designated
Brownfield Opportunity Areas and Opportunity Zones.

Continue to identify and pursue site development opportunities; closely monitoring
potential opportunities such as creation of a 26-acre shovel-ready site on former BAE
property in Johnson City, airport corridor, Oakdale Mall, former Heritage site,
Binghamton Plaza site, Endicott Plaza (former K-Mart) and Windsor.

Pursue opportunities to develop new industry sector clusters and supply chain
development where there are local and regional strengths, such as Healthcare,
Advanced Manufacturing, Energy Storage and Hemp.

Seek to achieve long-term financial sustainability of the IDA.

Continue to maintain ABO compliance.

Authority Stakeholder(s): Broome County Legislature

Authority Beneficiaries: The residents of Broome County

Authority Customers: The residents and businesses of Broome County
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Authority self-evaluation of 2019 Performance:

1.

Developed a strategy to address issues critical to workforce development, including the
need for country-wide housing revitalization.

Supported existing businesses, new businesses and developers by acquiring a new low-
interest loan program.

Prepared and maintained an asset and project development profile and mapping for
target areas in each community.

Facilitated meetings and forums of key stakeholders to discuss physical and technology
infrastructure necessary to support community and economic development; added new
Community Development Specialist to staff.

identified and pursued site development opportunities.

Continued to maintain ABO compliance.

Governance Certification:

Have the board members acknowledged that they have read and understood the
mission of the public authority?

Board of Directors Response: Yes
Who has the power to appoint management of the public authority?
Board of Directors Response: The Board of Directors

If the Board appoints management, do you have a policy you follow when appointing
the management of the public authority.

Board of Directors Response: Yes

Briefly describe the role of the Board and the role of management in the
implementation of the mission.

Board of Directors Response: The Board provides oversight, sets policy, and sets the
strategic direction for the Agency. Agency management works closely with the board to
ensure the Agency’s activities are always in line with the mission of the organization.

Has the Board acknowledged that they have read and understood the response to each
of these questions?

Board of Directors Response: Yes
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